
 

This meeting will be conducted in a handicap accessible room.  If special accommodations are needed, 
please contact City Recorder, Susan Reeves at (503) 543-7146, ext. 224 in advance. 

TTY 1-503-378-5938 
 

 
MONDAY, JUNE 3, 2019 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Regular meeting 7:00 p.m. 

Scappoose City Council Chambers  

 

 

ITEM AGENDA TOPIC___________________________________Action______ 
Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Approval of the Agenda 

 

1. Interview for Planning Commission Alternate  
 

Public Comments 
 

2. Consent Agenda ~ May 20, 2019 City Council meeting minutes and appointment of 

Planning Commission Alternate 

New Business 

3. Res No. 19-04: A Resolution Approving a County Order to Form a Service District for  

    Public Transit with a Permanent Tax Rate            Approval        

    Todd M. Wood, Transit Program Administrator, Columbia County Rider 
 

4. Community Enhancement Project (CEP) Presentations 

    Staff: Assistant to City Manager Alexandra Rains 
 

5. Res No. 19-05: Amendment to Economic Development Committee Bylaws  Approval 

    Staff: Assistant to City Manager Alexandra Rains 
 

6. Discussion on cancelling the July 1 City Council meeting 
 

Announcements ~ Information only  
 

7.  Calendar  

 City Manager, Police Chief, Councilors, and Mayor 

 

Adjournment 



Call to Order 

MONDAY, MAY 20, 2019 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Regular meeting 7:00 p.m. 
Scappoose City Council Chambers 

Mayor Burge called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 
Mayor Michael Sykes 

Norm Miller 
City Manager 
Police Chief 

Susan M. Reeves City Recorder 

Scott Burge 
Patrick Kessi 
Megan Greisen 
Joel Haugen 

Council President 
Councilor 
Councilor 
Councilor 
Councilor 

Alexandra Rains Assistant to City Manager 
Josh Poling 
Brandon Lesowske 

Peter Watts Legal Counsel Press: Anna Del Savio, Columbia County Spotlight 

Excused: Councilor Natalie Sanders Also present~ City Planner Laurie Oliver 

Approval of the Agenda 

Councilor Haugen moved and Councilor Greisen seconded the motion to approve the agenda. 
Motion passed (6-0). Mayor Burge, aye; Council President Kessi, aye; Councilor Greisen, aye; 
Councilor Haugen, aye; Councilor Poling, aye and Councilor Lesowske, aye. 

Public Comments 

There were no public comments. 

Consent Agenda-May 6, 2019 Work Session meeting minutes and May 6, 2019 City 
Council meeting minutes 

Councilor Haugen moved and Councilor Megan seconded the motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda~ May 6, 2019 Work Session meeting minutes and May 6, 2019 City Council meeting 
minutes. Motion passed (6-0). Mayor Burge, aye; Council President Kessi, aye; Councilor 
Greisen, aye; Councilor Haugen, aye; Councilor Poling, aye and Councilor Lesowske, aye. 

Old Business -Ord No. 881: An Ordinance Amending the Scappoose Municipal Code 
Chapter 8.20.140, Unnecessary Noise 

Councilor Kessi recused himself on this matter. 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 1 



Mayor Burge read the title for the second time ~ Ord No. 881: An Ordinance Amending the 
Scappoose Municipal Code Chapter 8.20.140, Unnecessary Noise. 

Chief Miller explained staff did add the hours to the Ordinance, as requested. 

Motion passed (5-0). Mayor Burge, aye; Councilor Greisen, aye; Councilor Haugen, aye; 
Councilor Poling, aye and Councilor Lesowske, aye. 

New Business 

Work Session~ Urban Renewal 

Assistant to City Manager Alexandra Rains explained ECONorthwest will be going through the 
next phase of Urban Renewal. 

Consultant Lorelei Juntunen explained this is really an important meeting and we have a lot of 
details to discuss. She explained we are at a point right now where we have most of the plan 
content ready for Council to review and are about to transition into an Urban Renewal Adoption 
process. She explained Elaine Howard is with us tonight and will be walking Council through all 
the coming steps to actually adopt an Urban Renewal Plan. She explained after this part of the 
presentation there is an action to be taken tonight related to adopting an Urban Rewnal Agency. 
She explained we have four topics to go through: Boundary, Urban Design Framework, Finance 
Plan & Project List and Goals. 

Consultants Lorelei Juntunen, Becky Hewitt, and Kim Isaacson went over the Urban Renewal 
Project Status and Decisions needed, 

Becky Hewitt explained at the last meeting we talked about a couple of things, so there are three 
proposed additions to the boundary. 

unda 
Status 

0 hand 

The TAC recommended the following changes to the proposed boundary (numbering 
corresponds to the map in Attachment 1): 
1. Add the West Lane Road right-of-way from E. Columbia Ave. to Crown Zellerbach 
Road to capture planned improvements on that stretch of road. 
2. Add Miller Park and a connecting strip of right-of-way to allow use of urban renewal 
funds towards one or more future drinking water well(s) on the site. 
3. Add the commercial area between Old Portland Road and Highway 30 north of Fred 
Meyer, based on Council's recommendation at the March 18th meeting and agreement 
that this area has remaining development potential and is an important gateway to 
Scappoose. 
4. Remove the Middle School site from the boundary, since it is unlikely to be redeveloped 
with private development. If that changes, the site could be added to the urban renewal 
area through an amendment. 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 2 



The current proposed boundary and the proposed changes are shown in Attachment 1. 
Note that adding the areas indicated as 1, 2, and 3 requires removing other land (i.e., the Middle 
School site) from the boundary in order to keep the urban renewal area roughly the same size. 
The boundary has been sized to allow future expansion up to the statutory limits. 

Direction Needed from Council 
• Any concerns about the proposed changes to the boundary? 

Becky Hewitt explained you can add the Middle School site later if you need to. She explained 
this is the boundary that the TAC recommended. 

Council President Kessi asked can we put into our plan now that we do plan to add the Middle 
School in the future? 

Becky Hewitt replied you can certainly signal an intention to do that, but it would not change the 
Statutory requirement around what it takes to include it and you could include it right now, but 
you probably would need to subtract other acreage. 

Councilor Haugen stated he forgets the rational on Miller Park. 

Becky Hewitt replied Miller Park is where there are some new drinking water wells proposed so 
would not generate tax revenue, but it would allow you to put funding into future drinking water 
wells. 

Becky Hewitt stated it sounds like everyone is okay with the boundary as shown. 

Lorelei Juntunen stated they have been really excited about working with ZGF, they have been in 
front of Council a couple of times and have heard feedback on previous interactions. 

Kim Isaacson with ZGF went over the handout. 

an 
Status 

gn F m hando 

ZGF Architects has produced an additional diagram highlighting opportunities for 
complementary improvements on private property in the areas where the urban design 
framework proposed streetscape enhancements. The current version of the urban design 
framework and diagrams are included in Attachment 2. 
The urban design framework suggests the following priorities to enhance the Town Center and 
make the community feel more cohesive: 
• Wider sidewalks with streetlights, street trees, etc. on E. Columbia Ave from US30 to 
West Lane Road, similar to those on the south side of E. Columbia between ls1and 2na. 
• Wider sidewalks with street trees NW /SW 1st Street from Maple Street to E.J. Smith 
Road 
• Adding landscaping and bike lanes to West Lane Road from E. Columbia Ave to Crown 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 3 



Zellerbach Road as a key connection from OMIC to the Town Center 
• More pedestrian-friendly crossings for key intersections on US30 at Columbia Ave and 
Maple Street. 
• A looping network of bike-friendly streets that connects to key destinations, including 
schools, the library and City hall, OMIC and major retailers. 
The private property opportunities include: 
• Storefront improvements for existing, older storefronts on Highway 30 and/or E. 

Columbia Ave 
• Introducing temporary uses such as food carts, farmers markets, or other activities to 
activate parking lots 
i No more than 25% of the City's land area and assessed value can be included in an urban renewal area (ORS 
457.420(2)(b)). In addition, an urban renewal area can be expanded by no more than 20% of its original size (ORS 
457.220(3)). 

• Development opportunities on vacant properties on NW ls1Street and E. Columbia Ave 
• Opportunities for property owners to consider infill, redevelopment, or adaptive reuse 
of existing buildings along NW and SW 1st Street and E. Columbia Ave 

~'~·~·Northwest 

ZGF o4.1s.2019 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 

l 
'.J;''"'°o~ .. ; 

PRIVATE PROPERTY OPPORTUNITIES 
FOR COMPLEMENTARY DEVELOPMENT 

4 



Kim Isaacson explained on the diagram (above) there are a couple of green parcels within the 1st 

Street corridor that right now are basically green fields, so those are some opportunity sites. He 
stated in addition there are some blue areas that they identified that are basically large parking 
lots that could act as sort of generators of activity when they are not being used as parking lots, 
such as food carts or farmers market, which might be beneficial to the community. 

Councilor Haugen stated we have taken the Middle School out of our Urban Renewal Plan, but 
you identified that it as a primary opportunity. 

Kim Isaacson replied we show it as using the parking lot. 

Councilor Haugen asked if there is anything wrong with portioning the middle school property 
into a third, so you just draw the boundary, so you have a more reasonable configuration of the 
total rather than taking the whole middle school property? 

Lorelei Juntunen replied that is possible and has some challenges to cut a parcel down the line 
but it is possible. She explained it does make it more difficult though because you are 
constraining your ability to invest to only that portion that is inside the boundary when a larger 
parcel like that will likely, if it redevelops, be master planned. She explained their take on it, 
through conversations with the School District, is that the property is not likely to redevelop 
anytime as a private use. 

Direction Needed from Council 
• Do the opportunities identified on the new diagram align with your priorities for the 
Town Center? 

Lorelei Juntunen went over the goals ~ 

Is 
Status 

Goals are not a required part of the urban renewal plan, but setting goals for the plan is a best 
practice that helps articulate what the area is intended to achieve and guide future 
implementation of the plan. The project list should implement the goals in the urban renewal 
plan. 
The proposed urban renewal goals have not changed since they were last presented to Council. 
They are summarized below. 
• Improve water, wastewater and stormwater infrastructure to support job growth. 
• Promote the emergence of a vibrant town center as a civic and cultural hub for 
Scappoose that is connected to surrounding neighborhoods and employment areas. 
• Encourage redevelopment and infill in the town center. 
• Support the growth and retention of local businesses. 

Lorelei Juntunen explained they want to make sure if they have goals in the plan we are actually 
advancing them through the investments and the projects. 

Becky Hewitt went over the finance plan and project list. 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 5 



Finan 
Status 

Plan 

Council Priorities 

p E h hando 

At their meeting on March 18th meeting, Council used a dot exercise to identify its priorities for 
investments in projects with the urban renewal funds available after providing a proportional 
share of projects from existing transportation, water, and sewer plans. The results of that 
exercise are summarized in Attachment 3. 

Cost Estimates 
Cost estimates for new streetscape projects are provided in Attachment 4. These cost estimates 
were shared with the TAC at their April 18th meeting. 

Tax Increment Financing projections 

The boundary amendments described above added roughly $2 million (2019$) in funding 
capacity. (The amount of the increase was calculated following the April 18th TAC meeting.) 

TAC on Priorities 
At their April 18th meeting, the TAC discussed their priorities for funding (in addition to the 
projects in existing plans) from among the projects highlighted by Council. They also shared 
their thoughts on the timing of projects. Note that the TAC's recommendations were based on 
the dollar amounts estimated to be available after fully funding existing projects before 
accounting for the boundary update. This means that the amount of funds available for other 
projects under the current draft finance plan is greater than the estimate at the time of the TAC 
meeting. The TAC's recommendations are summarized below. 
• Fund storefront improvement grants and loans beginning as soon as available revenue 
will allow2 
• Fund astudy of Highway 30 at Columbia and conversion of W. Columbia Ave to twoway 
(a TSP project) as soon as available revenue will allow 
2 The TAC recommended the following assumptions for the finance plan: $25,000-50,000 annually with a mix of 
grants and loans. This assumption is non-binding-if this project is included in the plan, the urban renewal agency 
would create a program after the plan is adopted and could establish the amount and terms at that time. 

• Fund streetscape improvements on E. Columbia as shown in the urban design 
framework 
• On West Lane Road, fund bike lanes only (a TSP project), not the addition of 
landscaping as shown on the urban design framework 
• On NW and SW 1st Street, fund sidewalk infill only (a TSP project), not extending 
sidewalks with landscaping as shown on the urban design framework 
• Split the remaining funds between transportation improvements (e.g. public parking, W. 
Columbia two-way conversion, or other connectivity improvements) and sewer 
(additional wastewater improvements not yet identified) 
The TAC discussed the following projects, which were identified as high priorities for at least 
some Council members, but did not reach unanimous agreement to include them in the 
recommended funding plan. 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 6 



• Grants or loans for housing or mixed use development projects. Some TAC members 
expressed doubt that housing or mixed use development would need public support. 
• Enhanced, more pedestrian-friendly sidewalks on NW /SW 1st Street from Maple Street 
to E.J. Smith Road. Concerns expressed by some TAC members included: that the cost 
was too high, that it was inefficient to replace existing sidewalks for aesthetic reasons, 
that the area has limited potential for redevelopment with new businesses, and that the 
City could achieve streetscape improvements incrementally through frontage 
improvements when properties redevelop. 
• Enhancing West Lane Road with landscaping and bike lanes from E. Columbia Ave to 
Crown Zellerbach Road. Some TAC members felt that the cost exceeded the benefit and 
that it was inefficient to put money into adding landscaping where sidewalks already 
exist. 
• Extending the Crown Zellerbach trail as a shared use path between Highway 30 and 
West Lane Road. 

and Finance Plan Su an es N hwest 

hando 

The TIF revenue that is not allocated to existing projects is primarily available in years 21-30 of 
the plan, especially years 26-30. Changes to financing assumptions in earlier years may mean 
that funds are not available when projects (e.g., water and sewer improvements) are needed. 
In the current version of the finance plan, the project team has allocated the additional funding 
resulting from the boundary change based on the TAC's direction about priorities for funding. 

However, this additional revenue is enough to fund (at least in part) one or more of the Council 
priorities thatthe TAC did not include in their recommendation. For example, $1.69 million for 
future sewer projects and $3.38 million for intersections and connectivity in years 26-30 could 
be replaced with other Council priorities if desired while retaining some funding in each of 
these categories in years 21-25. (See Exhibit 3.) 

Exhibit 1 shows a breakdown of funding by project category and whether the projects are 
included in existing plans or are new project ideas. Exhibit 2 shows how urban renewal funds 
would be allocated to project types based on the TAC recommendation. Exhibit 3 shows how 
funds would be spent over time by project category. A more detailed list of the projects that 
underlie the finance plan is included in Attachment 5. (Note that project descriptions may be 
modified for the final version of the project list in the urban renewal plan.) 

Exhibit 1: Urban Renewal Funds by Project Category, Existing Plans vs. New Projects, TAC 
recommendation. 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 7 



•In an existing plan New 

Otlier transportation I 
Bike/Pedestri8n Safety/:'~ Connectivity 

Enhanced streetscape 

Business 8, Property Owner Incentives 

SO $2,000,000 S4,000,000 $6,000,000 S8,000,000 

2019S 

Exhibit 2: Urban Renewal Funds by Project Type, TAC Recommendation 

Water/Sewer lmpro,iements 

Other transpo1·tation 

Bihe/Peclestrian Safety & Connectivity 

Enhanced streetscape 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 
improvements 

Bike Route Improvements 

Complete 
sidewalks 

E. Columbia 
Streetsoa pe 

Trails 

Parking 

Business & P1·operty Owner Incentives I Storefront Improvements 

$0 $2.000,000 5"1.000,000 

2019$ 

D1·inking Water 
Treatment and Supply 

Transportation 
Studies 

Water 
Dist1·ibution 

$f3,000,000 $8,000,000 

Becky Hewitt explained just to summarize where the TAC landed verses where this body has 
landed previously, they were with you on the storefront improvement grants and the enhanced 
sidewalks, they weren't into the landscaping, but they were into the bike lanes for West Lane 
Road. She explained the enhanced crossings on US 30 and Columbia, Maple especially at 
Columbia, converting Columbia into two way and the sidewalk infill only on 1st Street, and then 
the others didn't really rise to the top for the group as a whole, but that is not to say there wasn't 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 8 



any support for that, but there wasn't necessarily consensus support for the others. She explained 
the new projects that they recommended, that were not specifically called out in what they had 
brought to the TAC previously, and the way that they put the dollars towards them in the current 
draft of the finance planning, these are not based on a cost, these are based on just set aside this 
much money for this in the future. She stated just a couple of reminders as you think about the 
project list and the finance plan you can't spend money on projects that are not in the plan, you 
can't exceed your total max indebtedness, and you can't spend money if it is outside the 
boundary. She stated as you administer the funds, you can fund the projects at a different 
amount, you can fund them at a different time than you originally thought, and you can choose 
not to fund something on the list. 

Elaine Howard explained she is working with ECONorthwest on this project. She gave an 
overview of plan amendments. 

Councilor Lesowske stated he would like to use the recommendations from TAC to better 
understand how we can make changes in the future if need be. He explained based on TAC they 
think incorporating bike lanes would be as much as they would want to see invested in that 
improvement area. But, if we decide we would also like to see some streets cape with trees or 
something added there, and we say we only want to put in $200,000 towards the landscaping and 
as we go further into the project and we get a grant, could we then increase the amount of dollars 
that we would put towards landscaping potentially to build out what the full value would be, and 
that is still a minor amendment? 

Elaine Howard replied yes. She explained there are only two things that aren't a minor 
amendment; increasing your acreage over 1 % and increasing your maximum indebtedness. 

Lorelei Juntunen explained we need to figure out what words we write down in the plan to 
describe the project, which is what needs to happen next. 

Legal Counsel Peter Watts explained you need enough specificity that Bond Counsel is willing 
to sign off on it. He explained with these types of things it is best to engage Bond Counsel early 
and make sure they are okay with the level of detail. 

TAC's recommendation for Council priority projects: 
1. Storefront improvement grants/loans 
2. Enhanced sidewalks on E. Columbia 
3. Landscaping & bike lanes on West Lane Road 
4. Enhanced crossings on US 30 @ Columbia and/or Maple 
5. Converting W. Columbia Ave to 2-way 
6. Enhanced sidewalks on 1st Street (sidewalk infill only) 
7. Extending Crovm Zellerbach Trail U830 West Lane Rd 
8. Grants/loans for housing/mixed use de»'elopment 

Councilor Greisen explained her top two priorities are safety connectivity for sidewalks and 
infrastructure. She explained beautification of the downtown overlay is something that, when 
done, shows that something is happening. 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 9 



Becky Hewitt stated none of the things that are struck through are things that were universally 
unwanted by the TAC, but for folks that had concerns, she thinks the concern was - is it needed? 
Does private development need public support in this area in the sense that it would happen on 
its own. She explained because you are not required to spend the money on private development, 
if it turns out it doesn't need it, it doesn't lock you in to funding any specific development or any 
development at all, it gives you the option to do it. 

Lorelei Juntunen explained, as an option you could describe projects number 4 and 5 as studies 
that would need to be completed, and to fund those studies so that you have some sense of what 
it would look like, because they are not particularly well defined at this point. 

Councilor Poling replied he thinks we still need to include the affordable housing part of it just 
because we are looking at thirty years and that is a long period of time. He stated part of our 
other plan is to have affordable housing. He still thinks that should be a discussion on how we 
want to use that. 

Lorelei Juntunen stated we all decided not that long ago that we wanted to have housing and 
mixed-use development and potentially affordable housing in the Urban Rewnal Plan. She asked 
are we all still feeling okay about that, which means that strike through on #8 would go away and 
we would figure out where we want to fund it? 

General consensus yes. 

Council President Kessi stated he thinks, like what Councilor Greisen said, a vibrant downtown 
is one of the things we wanted to look at. He stated how can we have a downtown where people 
can walk, shop, and work all in the same area without using a car and that is what the Urban 
Renewal District is all about. He thinks enhancing sidewalks on 1st Street, that right now it is 
hard to see that vision. He thinks if we could set it up where we do Columbia A venue first, then 
1st Street that would be best. He stated landscaping and bike lanes on West Lane Road, the 
landscaping may be a phase two. 

Lorelei Juntunen asked if they would like to eliminate the strike throughs on #3, #6 and #8? 

General consensus yes. 

City Manager Sykes replied how about #7? 

Lorelei Juntunen stated she hopes she is not reading too much into the comments she is hearing, 
but what she thinks she is hearing is that the Council likes their priorities and they don't disagree 
with what TAC has added, and so maybe one way forward is for them to bring Council a finance 
plan that does all of these things and what that would mean is much lower dollar numbers on the 
additional sewer projects and the future connectivity and intersections. 

Becky Hewitt stated if you fund everything you would be funding pieces of things and you need 
to recognize that you are going to have come up with other funding for the rest of it, or you are 
only going to do a couple of blocks or something like that. 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 10 



Mayor Burge stated the bike lane should be the priority and then the other items if the funds are 
available. 

Council President Kessi stated in his opinion the West Lane landscaping would be the last thing 
to do just because there is no retail there. 

Councilor Poling stated Columbia A venue and 1st Street should be our top priorities. 

Lorelei Juntunen asked does that then sound like we would stick with just being bike lanes on 
West Lane so that strike through stays, but we do make sure we prioritize the sidewalks on 1st 
Street? 

Mayor Burge stated he understands what the idea was with landscaping and bike lanes 
connecting Columbia A venue to OMIC but when you are looking at limited resources, he thinks 
our priorities should be the bike lanes. 

Lorelei Juntunen replied that was a pretty significant dollar amount on #3 that would free up 
resources for #8. 

Becky Hewitt stated if you want to do all of 1st Street that is about four million. She went over 
the finance list. 

Lorelei Juntunen stated if we can get to where your priorities are then they can work with that 
and turn it into a finance plan. #1 and #2 stay as they are, #3 as it is, meaning the landscaping is 
out, #4 and #5 stay on the list but will get reduced to accommodate the other things that were 
discussed, #8 stays and the strike out goes away, #6 we will try to fund it all, and number #7 
comes off. 

Mayor Burge stated he would put #5 before #4. 

Councilor Haugen stated he would even move it down one more. 

Becky Hewitt replied in terms of Councils priorities, you would get the grants and loans in there, 
you would fund at least a portion and maybe all of 1st Street sidewalk improvements, and then 
put some funding toward future improvements on West Columbia. 

Lorelei Juntunen replied that makes sense. She stated which makes it much more likely that we 
will do all of the enhanced sidewalks on 1st Street. She thanked Council. 

Council President Kessi asked did we look at putting trees in the middle of Highway 30? 

Kim Isaacson replied yes, they did a preliminary study of that which they haven't presented to 
the TAC or Council. He stated that was a way to think about how they might eliminate some of 
the left turn lanes and that may also provide opportunity to provide protective crossings but to do 
that you might have to sacrifice some left turn options. He explained because that is very 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 11 



complicated and involves ODOT they just sort of came up with a conceptual snapshot and left it 
at that. He stated that is something that could be developed further if needed. 

Becky Hewitt explained the study of the US 30 and Columbia intersection could be a little bit 
broader to think about a larger portion of the corridor and consider whether there are 
opportunities for planted medians or things like that and just sort of revisit a little bit of the 
length of Highway 30 and the circulation there. Then you might be able to consider that type of 
option and see what would it mean from a transportation perspective, things they weren't able to 
evaluate as part of an Urban Renewal process. 

Lorelei Juntunen went over the proposed goals. She explained in terms of the last goal, support 
the growth and retention of local businesses, we definitely have a lot of infrastructure 
investments that can do that, but you could add the concept .of tenant improvements through 
storefront loans to make sure you are really achieving that goal, otherwise she feels like all of the 
changes and additions Council has made really do advance the goals. She went over the next 
steps. She thanked Council so much for their time and attention. 

Council thanked Lorelei. 

City Manager Sykes stated to Lorelei thank you and ZGF for all your time and efforts. 

Ord. No 882: Establishment of Scappoose Urban Renewal Agency 

Mayor Burge opened the public hearing at 8:27 p.m. 

Elaine Howard explained the process of the Ordinance to establish an Urban Renewal Agency. 

Mayor Burge asked ifthere was anyone who would like to speak on this matter. 

Len Waggoner, Scappoose, explained he is on theTAC and they have been going over the 
questions and such, but his whole issue tonight is to talk about the Scappoose Middle School. He 
explained he considers there are two properties in the City of Scappoose that can effectively pay 
for the Urban Renewal. He explained the zoning for the Scappoose Middle School is zoned 
Commercial, which would allow the construction of about 275 housing units and those housing 
units could be marketable in the $300,000 plus range with a parking tower which could total 
around 85 million dollars of gross, will basically do about a 25 million dollar bond to pay for it. 
He explained if you are not going to have the Middle School as an opportunity, you basically cut 
the opportunity to pay for all this in half. He explained when Council approved the airport you 
approved the concept of employing 8,000 people. He stated those 8,000 people are going to 
come here and when they get here, they are going to have to find a place to live. He explained 
the perimeter communities to Portland are going to be the next destination. He stated the 
practical look at this, that it is a potential site, that site should addressed, that site should be in the 
program. He stated it is totally remiss on our part if we don't have that opportunity. He stated the 
sale of that property would definitely enhance the School District. 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 12 



Fire Chief Mike Greisen, Scappoose, read a letter to the Council. 

May 20, 2019 

SCAPPOOSE 

FIRE DISTRICT 
P.O.Box 625 SCAPPOOSE, OREGON 97056 

To the Scappoose City Councilors: 

We all want economic growth. I am here on behalf of the Scappoose Fire District 
to encourage the City to look at other revenue sources to finance this growth. I 
also am here to say that the Urban Renewal District plan as proposed has too 
many flaws to successfully foster growth. 

I am deeply concerned that overlapping tax districts were not specifically notified 
that you plan to formally consider the Urban Renewal District (URD) during this 
meeting. It was generally stated at the last meeting that you would consider the 
report at your May meeting. No mention was made of Ordinance No. 882. 

When considering an Urban Renewal District, we must remember that URD tax 
revenue cannot be used to pay for services. An Urban Renewal District raises 
income for special projects by diverting future taxes away from services. 

History has shown that city services are downsized and positions are eliminated 
due to URDs. The City Manager is well aware of this downsizing because it has 
happened in Astoria, Forest Grove, and Hood River. Now the City of Albany is 
getting ready to downsize City services. The City of Albany is looking at a two 
year plan to eliminate fire fighters, police officers, library, parks and other 
positions due to increased personnel cost and no new tax revenue to pay for the 
increase. 

You conducted an Urban Renewal Survey asking what improvements 
Scappoose citizens want to see in the City. These included better roads, better 
sidewalks, additional police officers and a safer community. You stated that the 
Urban Renewal District will provide the funding needed for these improvements. 
Were Scappoose residents ever asked what services they would reduce or 
eliminate to have the improvements they wanted? Did the City ask its citizens 
what services and positions they would recommend for reduction or elimination 
due to insufficient tax revenue available for City services? 

Again, Urban Renewal tax revenue cannot be used to pay for services. With the 
ever-increasing costs of PERS and health care, how will the City pay for 
increased costs when it has forfeited future tax revenues to create the Urban 
Renewal District? Does the City have a plan for laying off employees, eliminating 
positions and cutting services to the citizens of Scappoose? 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 13 



The Forgone Revenues Statement for overlapping districts is incomplete and 
therefore incorrect because it does not include the lost revenue for operating 
levies. Both Scappoose Fire District and Columbia 911 stated in the meeting that 
they each have 5-year operating levies, and still this information was not 
included. The citizens of Scappoose Fire District have voted to renew this levy 
every 5 years to pay for the personnel needed to provide the fire and EMS 
services they value and require. 

This vital tax information was requested multiple times. We were told it would be 
done in the future by another individual. This information was never provided at 
a meeting which allowed the necessary discussion to understand how the 
calculations were determined. One spreadsheet was e-mailed out with no 
explanation of how the calculations were completed. 

The 5-year operating levies for Scappoose Fire and Columbia 911 provide more 
than half of each District's total tax revenue. These funds are essential to 
provide the services our citizens requested and expect. Over the life of the 
Urban Renewal District, the report says Scappoose Fire District will lose 
$3,378,415. Actually, the District will lose $7 ,094,671 when the levy is included. 
The report says Columbia 911 will lose $774,202. Actually, Columbia 911 will 
lose $1,625,824 when the operating levy is included. Did the consultants 
accidentally omit this information even though they were told the two districts 
operated on 5 year levies? Or was it a deliberate decision to understate revenue 
loss so City councilors could sell their plan for an urban renewal district? 

The URD prospective financial report shows that taxing districts will not lose any 
tax revenue until 2021, during which the City will lose $5,830, the Fire District 
$2,014, and 911 $461. We believe these calculations are incorrect and flawed. 
Actually, as soon as you sign ordinance No. 882 and before the ink dries, the 
City of Scappoose will lose $77,443, Scappoose Fire District $56,508 and 
Columbia 911 $13,089. 

The Fire District currently needs to replace fire apparatus. Our existing 
apparatus require increasingly frequent repairs and then are not available for 
emergencies. We are planning a 10 year capital levy to pay for the apparatus. A 
10 year capital levy allows the District to purchase the equipment after the taxes 
have been received and avoid interest expense. 

The signing of the URD will force the Fire District to ask citizens for a bond 
measure to replace needed fire apparatus instead of going out for a 10 year 
capital levy. Bond measures include interest expense because funds are 
received in advance instead of over 10 years. The interest cost alone would cost 
taxpayers $1.3 million. 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 14 



At last year's meeting, the URD development of commercial and industrial jobs 
was discussed, as was the need to put a new fire station in the industrial area. In 
the URD Survey, citizens also wanted a fire station on the east side. A new 
station sounds great, but it takes tax dollars to pay for personnel to staff that 
station. An increased voter-approved operating tax measure would be necessary 
to pay for the service needed to staff another fire station. While the URD would 
benefit from the station, only citizens outside the URD would be paying to staff it. 

It would take 2700 residential homes to provide the necessary tax dollars to staff 
the new fire station. The City has no long range plans for a development of that 
size at this time. All of these homes would have to be built outside the U RD in 
order to be taxed. Only commercial and industrial structures outside the URD 
would generate tax revenue which could be used for services. Unfortunately, 
most available land for commercial and industrial building structures is in the 
URD. 

There are also police and water and sewer services to consider. We have yet to 
see the financial plan for water and sewer treatment plants. This will be the 
largest expense in the URD. If there is growth in URD residential or commercial 
structures, water and sewer rates could be increased to provide the funds 
needed to protect services in that department. 

Economic growth requires increased police service. However, there would be no 
URD funds to pay for that. Like Clatskanie, the City of Scappoose could 
contract with Columbia County Sheriff's Office at a reduced cost to citizens. 
However, we believe the community supports their own police department and 
will not want to contract with the Sheriff's office for those services. 

In conclusion, the citizens of Scappoose deserve to know all necessary 
information regarding the costs of the URD and how those costs will affect the 
services they expect and need. Further investigation and discussion into the tax 
information and calculations presented are needed before agreeing to Ordinance 
No. 882. In addition, serious analysis of alternative financing options such as 
voter-approved bond measures must be considered and presented to citizens. 

Respectfully submitted, 

,,------
~;_Q._2--> 
Michael S. Greisen 
Fire Chief 
Scappoose Fire District 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 15 



Alternate Plan for Water & Sewer Treatment Plant Development 

Building with bonds guaranteed by taxpayers spreads tax burden over 100% of the city. 
This is more equitable than putting 25% of the Qty in an Urban Renewal District with 

a resulting loss of revenue to the overlapping districts. 

Phase 1: 2020 
15 Year Bond Measure 

Pay with bond tax funds 
$500,000 annually with Systems Development charges 

$15 Million 

$7.5 Million 
$7.5 Million 

Phase 2: 2035 Higher assessed valuation for same bond amount at same rate 
12 Year Bond Measure $15 Million 

Pay with bond tax funds 
$500,000 annually with Systems Development charges 

2045 Pay off bond early 

$10 Million 
$5 Million 

Systems Development Charges are allowed under ORS 223.307 to pay for expenditures relating to repayment of debt for capital improvements. 

Councilor Haugen asked how Chief Greisen came up with the calculations? 

Fire Chief Mike Greisen replied on the calculations that were provided by whomever the 
consultants hired and by using the City's tax rate of $3 .2268 which the City is losing close to 9 
million dollars. He explained the second calculation was the Scappoose Fire Districts with the 
tax rate of $1.1145 plus the $1.24 levy. 

Lorelei Juntunen replied she would like to see a copy of the testimony so they could go through 
it point by point and provide any comments that would be helpful, but local option levies are not 
affected by Urban Renewal in the State of Oregon. She explained they would want to double 
check and make sure they are using the same terminology and understanding this correctly, but 
they believe they actually represented their numbers correctly. She explained they are working 
with Tyberius Solutions to do the financial analysis and he has been at meetings previously. 

Elaine Howard stated, to make it clear, permanent rate levies are what are impacted by Urban 
Renewal and local option levels are not impacted, but they used to be. She stated they would like 
to be able to sit down with Chief Greisen and go through the numbers and help clarify some of 
the issues. 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 16 



Mayor Burge stated he will leave the public hearing open and continue it to the next meeting. 

Councilor Greisen asked City Manager Sykes ifhe faced any of that downsizing when he was in 
Forest Grove? 

City Manager Sykes replied he is not aware of any downsizing in Forest Grove at all. He stated 
the City is still very robust and doing very well. 

Mayor Burge asked if there were any other questions? Seeing none he explained we are waiting 
for the response which will be at the next meeting. 

Legal Counsel Peter Watts stated if Council is going to hold the public hearing open you will 
need to wait to do the first reading at the next meeting. 

City Manager Sykes explained the meeting on June 3 will be a full meeting and then the second 
meeting in June will be fairly full. 

Mayor Burge stated we will continue this until the second meeting in June. 

Announcements ~ Information only 

Calendar 

Mayor Burge went over the calendar. 

City Manager, Police Chief, Councilors, and Mayor 

City Manager Sykes explained Council has a copy of his department report. 

Councilor Haugen explained Cara Heinz is the new Chair of the Park and Recreation Committee. 

Executive Sessions: 

1. ORS 192-660(2)(e) Real Property Transaction 
2. ORS 192-660(2)(e) Real Property Transaction 

Mayor Burge read the opening statement and then went into Executive Session at 8:53 p.m. 

In attendance: Mayor Burge, Council President Kessi, Councilor Greisen, Councilor Poling, 
Councilor Haugen, Councilor Lesowske, City Manager Sykes, Legal Counsel Peter Watts, City 
Planner Laurie Oliver, City Recorder Susan Reeves, and Anna Del Savio, Columbia County 
Spotlight. 

Mayor Burge came out of Executive Session into open session at 9:14 p.m. 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 17 



Adjournment 

Mayor Burge adjourned the meeting at 9:14 p.m. 

Mayor Scott Burge 
Attest: 

City Recorder Susan M. Reeves, MMC 

City Council meeting minutes May 20, 2019 18 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-04 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A COUNTY ORDER TO FORM A SERVICE 
DISTRICT FOR PUBLIC TRANSIT WITH A PERMANENT TAX RATE 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners for Columbia County, Oregon, by 
order intends to initiate the formation of the Columbia County Rider Service District, hereinafter 
referred to as the "District," for the purpose of providing public transportation through a service 
district established in accordance with ORS 198.715 and 451.435; and 

WHEREAS, the Board's order will also propose a permanent tax rate for the District in 
the amount of $0.18 per $1,000 of assessed property value within the District; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Scappoose is located within the service area of the proposed 

district and pursuant to ORS 198.835(3), no part of a city may be included within the boundaries 
of the proposed district without a resolution by the city approving that inclusion; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that, 

1. If the voters approve the formation of the District, then the City Council of the City of 
Scappoose hereby consents to be included in the district; and 

2. A certified copy of this Resolution shall be delivered to the County Board to accompany 
the request for initiating formation. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Scappoose City Council and signed by me, and the 
City Recorder, in authentication of its passage on this _ day of June 2019. 

CITY OF SCAPPOOSE, OREGON 

Scott Burge, Mayor 

Susan M. Reeves, MMC, City Recorder 



AMANI CENTER 
Columbia County Child Abuse Assessment Program 

Mailing Address: PO Box 1001, St Helens, OR 97051 

Medical Assessment & Administrative Office: 1621 Columbia Blvd., St. Helens, OR 97051 

Phone: (503) 366-4005 Fax: (503) 366-0314 e-mail: amanicenter@comcast.net 

May 28, 2019 

City of Scappoose 
Attn: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
33568 East Columbia Avenue 
Scappoose, OR 97056 

RE: Community Enhancement Project Application 

Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council Members, 

The Amani Center is honored to receive your letter and invitation to submit a grant proposal. 
With our established partnership, the Amani Center will be able to continue providing much 
needed services to underserved child abuse victims in our community. 

Children are our most vulnerable population. When children do not have access to specialized 
child abuse medical and forensic assessment services, it may result in further abuse, death or 
long term health issues. Children who do not have an opportunity to heal from the trauma of 
abuse may have adverse effects well into adulthood. This may affect their ability to parent and 
function successfully as an adult in society. 

Research has found that traumatic childhood experiences are major risk factors for the leading 
causes of illness and death as well as poor quality of life in the United States. Therefore, I 
believe an investment today in the intervention and elimination of traumatic childhood 
experiences, such as child abuse, will substantially increase the quality of life in our community! 

Again, thank you for the opportunity to apply for funding through the City of Scappoose 
Community Enhancement program. We look forward to continuing the strong relationship we 
have built with the City of Scappoose. Together we can ensure children are healthy and safe! 

Cassy M. Miller 
Executive Director 

Y ············· B : ................ . 



COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICATION 

Sponsor: 1\\\1\CLVU ~ 
Tax ID# q~-- l t.,q 51-/ .].. l\/ l

0 

?. I~ 2019 

Contact Person: &ss~ M\Uier or 'Be+hPulliu 
Daytime Phone So~-3(ofu-4DD5 

BY! ................................ . 

Address: Po 6ox, l OD \ 

City: St l±tevtS State:_()[(, ___ Zip: qlb5l 

Signature: _____________ _ 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Title ....-. _ _ _ .o .• .. 1l... Amount Funds Requested: Needed by*: 
~ lJ.. ~\A.St- ~SU- tv6t-\.AA£U lDYlS ™ w ~ S?vvi.«s $ 5<:co '.!Lt"! ( wi.o F'/ 
*Availability ofunds is contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the State 

Proposed schedule 

Project Start Date: · ] { \ ( 1.Dl q Project Completion Date: la(7Jo\ 1.DW 

4 



Amani Center - Project Description 

Program explanation attached as "Executive Summary" and "Description of Assessment Program and Positions" 

The Amani Center is requesting grant funding to support all agency operations in order to provide Child Forensic 

Evaluations and Family Support Services for victimized children in Scappoose and Columbia County. The purpose of 

this project is to ensure that alleged child abuse victims in Columbia County are provided with quality medical and 

forensic assessment/intervention and support services in a timely manner while in a secure and child-friendly 

environment. The number of requests for the Center's assessment/treatment services has continued to increase 

each year. 

The City of Scappoose has a 2% higher rate of people under the age of 18 years than Columbia County's average 

(per 2010 census). Last year, nearly 14% of the clients served by the Amani Center were residents of Scappoose 

and/or victimized in Scappoose. This statistic has held steady for the past 3 years (2016-2018). Additionally, 16% of 

the total services provided by the Amani Center went to children and families from Scappoose. 

The Amani Center is requesting funds in the amount of $5,000 from the City of Scappoose to support the 

center's ongoing Child Abuse Assessment Services. This funding request represents less than 1% of our annual 

budget requirements for the 2019/2020 fiscal year. To sustain the current level of services and meet the increasing 

needs of child victims in Columbia County, the Amani Center is seeking total funding in the amount of $719,269 from 

multiple grantors, project revenue streams and community members through contributed support donations. 

Acquiring this funding will retain existing program services and positions within the agency, provide necessary 

assessment resources, help to sustain essential medical practitioners, and provide supplies required for the center's 

operations. 

The importance of the assessment team, including a Medical Examiner, Child Forensic Interviewer and Family 

Support Services Specialist, is crucial to the victim, their caregivers and our community partners. The immediate 

intervention by the assessment team is integral to the physical and emotional welfare of the child. This initial 

process is the most important step taken in the healing of the child and the support of non-offending caregivers. 

Furthermore, the specialized services provide professional diagnosis of child abuse and expert testimony used later 

for medical/therapeutic treatment and throughout the investigation/prosecution of offenders. 

Last year, we provided 246 such assessments. At a time when the service need suggests that ethically and 

morally our community should be increasing services to this vulnerable population, we are continually faced with 

the possibility of not being able to provide an adequate number of services to these children and their families. 

Through diligent fund sourcing and tireless fund raising, we were able to increase Medical Examiner days from 2 to 4 

for a portion of 2018. We saw an increase in the number of children seen each week, a confirmation that the 

staffing increase was a necessity in our county. Unfortunately, we do not see this need decreasing in the future. 

Our current goal is to sustain funding for these added days with the potential to add a fifth day, if funding becomes 

viable. 



Amani Center-Addressing Community Enhancement, Scappoose Vision Statement & Council Goals 

Explain how this project would enhance the Community while achieving one of the values described in 

the Scappoose Vision Statement and/or City Council Goals. 

The Amani Center program addresses the Community Enhancement Program criteria by benefitting 

youth and underserved populations (criteria "C" on the application). Furthermore, we are also able to 

support the current City of Scappoose Council Goals, as well as sustain the community's Vision 

Statement. 

The Amani Center is proud to be a partner with Scappoose Police Department to help keep Scappoose 

one of the 5 safest communities in Oregon. Scappoose Police Department may refer any child that they 

suspect to have been abused, neglected or a witness to violence. The Amani Center staff work side-by

side with Scappoose Police Department, OHS and families to ensure that appropriate services are 

offered. 

Further, the Amani Center is committed to providing law enforcement a secure facility to observe 

forensic interviews and to be provided with written reports, as well as a DVD recording of the interview 

to further assist with their investigation. 

This collaborative endeavor provides law enforcement with specialized child forensic interviewing and 

medical examinations for their cases in a trauma-informed manner. Additionally, it contributes to 

reducing further trauma that child victims may experience by providing the child friendly and safe 

environment to collect case information and to ensure the safety of child victims, thereby supporting 

part of Scappoose's Vision Statement of a Caring Community where people will feel safe and be at peace 

in their homes. 



Amani Center- Project Budget and Secured Funding 

Project Budget 

Total Estimated Costs: $719,269 

How were these costs estimated (quotes, catalog, previous projects, etc.)? 

Please see attached Amani Center budget - FY 2019/2020 

% of Total Budget provided by Sponsor: 99+ % 

Is there Secure Funding for Sponsor's share of the total costs? Does the project include funding from 

other public or private agencies and what are the sources of funding? 

The Amani Center has secured funding through multiple streams including: Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) 

grants, the Justice Reinvestment Act, the Child Abuse Multidisciplinary Intervention (CAMI} Fund, the 

City of St. Helens Enterprise Zone benefits, Fund raising events, Contributed Support Donations from 

community members, Columbia Pacific CCO, several smaller foundations including Oregon Community 

Foundation, Joseph E Weston Grant, Samuel S. Johnson Foundation and employee contribution grants. 

Additional funding comes from medical billing as well. 



Amani Center 2019/2020 FY Budget 
Proposed budget- Not Board Approved 

REVENUE 
GRANT REVENUE 

Government Grants $ 239,959 

Foundation Grants: $ 74,603 

Corporate Grants: $10,000 

Community Grants $ 28,500 

Training Grants $ 5,000 
MEDICAL BILLING 
Medical Billing $ 189,408 
FUNDRAISING 
Event Revenue $ 118,700 

Individual Contributions $ 49,000 
FEES FOR SERVICE 
Fees for service $ 3,200 
OTHER INCOME $ 900 

Estimated Yearly Expenditure $ 719,270 

EXPENSES 
PERSONNEL EXPENSES 
Gross Salary $448,771 

Med/Dental Benefits $24,266 
Gross Taxes $50,477 
GENERAL EXPENSES 
Office Rent $31,170 

Telephone/Fax/Internet $3,564 
Storage Facility $1,320 

Water $276 
Shredding $336 
Bookkeeping {SMJones) $9,000 

Payroll/Tax Services $1,600 

Legal Fees I Services $6,000 

Office Equipment/ Lease $2,700 
Website Maintanance (Host) DirectNic {Prepaid 2 yrs) $96 
HIPAA Security $15,000 

IT Support $11,026 

CACCareNet {Client Files) $1,800 

Server BackUp (Carbonite) $660 

Log Me In (JoinMe) $240 

SurveyMonkey $384 

Square 



Direct Timekeeping $720 

Fundraising Expenses $40,700 

Staff Holiday Gift $300 
DUES 
NCA Membership Fee $300 
Network Membership Fee $750 
Chamber Dues $500 

OR Tax $75 
FEES 
SAM $50 

Secretary of State-OBA $50 

Secretary of State-Annual Report $50 
MDT Summit Conference 

Network Meetings $1,030 
INSURANCE 
General Liability $4,510 
D&O Policy $2,000 
Umbrella $750 
Cyber Liability $1,051 
NP Liability Insurance $5,329 
Worker's Comp Insurance (.0043 per $100 payroll) $800 

VARIABLE EXPENSES 
Training Expenses (Grant Funded) $5,000 
Equipment Maintenance/Repairs $6,000 

Office Maintenance/Repairs $2,000 
Office Supplies & Postage $4,500 
Background Check Expenses $3,000 
Legal- VOCA-SST Expenses $3,828 

Emergency- VOCA-SST Expenses $1,358 
Therapy-VOCA-SST Expenses $3,828 

Training-VOCA-SST Expenses $2,175 
Reserve I Emergency Fund $12,000 

Estimated Yearly Expenditure $719,269 



Amani Center- Project Management 

Provide a brief narrative outlining the major tasks and projected timeline schedule for completing each 

task. 

The Amani Center child abuse evaluation and support services is an existing and ongoing project. All 

services are provided and recorded during the calendar year and all financials are on July 1-June 30 

fiscal year. This project has been operating and in effect since 2003. The Amani Center will continue to 

provide services to children and their non-offending caregivers as long as the need exists in Columbia 

County. This project is on a continual cycle and has seen, and will continue to see, both programmatic 

and organizational growth for many years to come. 



Amani Center- Past Community Enhancement grant recipient 

Have you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the past? If so, was the project 

successful? Please describe: 

Yes, we have received a CEP grant in the past. We believe that the continuation of services and growth 

at the Amani Center has proven the agency's ability to successfully create and maintain programs by 

providing child victims of abuse, their caregivers and our community partners the support and services 

they need. 

The primary source of revenue for the Amani Center is grants. The Amani Center has extensive 

experience managing projects, accurately tracking statistical data and reporting to funders on progress. 



_j 

AMANI CENTER 
Columbia County Child Abuse Assessment Program 

Mailing Address: PO Box 1001 , St Helens, OR 97051 

Medical Assessment & Administrative Office: 1621 Columbia Blvd., St. Helens, OR 97051 

Phone: (503) 366-4005 Fax: (503) 366-0314 e-mail: amanicenter@comcast.net 

Executive Summary 

The Amani Center was founded in response to community need. In the late 1990s, child abuse assessment & treatment 
services were still not available in Columbia County. Child victims of sexual assault, physical abuse, neglect and other 
crimes are not only impacted by the crime itself but are often traumatized by the investigative process that occurs after a 
crime. Without child abuse assessment services, children are often asked to tell the most traumatizing story of their life 
multiple times to different systems that are often intimidating. Children's ability to provide statements or testimony is 
often effected by their age and development. Without special training for interviewers and consideration for the unique 
needs of children, arrest and prosecution outcomes were bleak, children were additionally traumatized and they were not 
receiving appropriate medical care, follow up supports and services. Child victims in Columbia County faced additional 
barriers as the nearest facility able to provide forensic medical and assessment services was in Portland. Children had to 
be transported to Portland and the number of assessment slots was extremely limited . Trips to Portland from our rural 
community can be upwards of 2 hours each way and emergency room visits can take several hours or more. Our most 
vulnerable community members faced barriers of poverty, lack of transportation, lack of medical insurance or ability to 
pay, and inexperience navigating services and systems. Private transportation for this long trip was not always available 
and limited services such as bus or taxi transportation resulted in either local law enforcement or OHS personnel providing 
transportation for victims to receive services. This system was slow and costly, and many victims went un-served. 

In 2000, a consortium of public and private agencies took action to solve the problem of lack of local child abuse 
assessment & treatment services. They created the Amani Center. Today our center serves children from birth to 18 years 
of age who live in Columbia County, Oregon and are suspected victims of abuse, neglect or victims/witnesses of crime 
(including domestic violence). Columbia County is a large rural area with many remote, geographically isolated and 
underserved communities lacking in services and resources. Many of the children we serve come from families facing the 
challenges of poverty, disability, mental health and addiction issues. We provide culturally competent , trauma informed 
services and are able to accommodate clients with language and cultural barriers. 

Amani Center staff provide comprehensive, multi-disciplinary forensic medical assessments and forensic interviews. When 
appropriate, staff testify in court on behalf of the child . We provide children and non-offending family members with 
family support services, advocacy, referrals to community organizations and services, as well as compassionate trauma 
informed crisis support. We are the only agency providing services of this type in Columbia County. 

Our services have benefits that ultimately affect every member of our community. The CDC estimates that each victim of 
child abuse results in an economic cost of $210,012 and impacts ripple out through family, friends, schoolmates, neighbors 
and beyond . Victims are more likely to struggle in school, have negative health outcomes, mental health challenges and 
possibly even react with violent behavior themselves. This results in impacts to the local economy and to all Oregonians 
due to the costs of Child Welfare interventions, foster-care, special education, self-sufficiency benefits, juvenile 
department involvement, law enforcement investigations and more. The Amani Center provides information and resource 
referrals to any family members, caregivers, youth, investigators, community members and community partner agencies 
who call or stop in for support or assistance. 

We continue to see an increased need for Amani Center services in our community and many barriers still exist for the 
families we serve. As individuals become better at identifying child abuse and our community continues to face increases 
in parental substance abuse, lack of accessible mental health interventions and an expanding population, more children 
are identified needing services and support. Our agency has stretched and innovated to continue to be responsive to the 
community need and to break down these barriers to services. We have developed a small, well-trained staff with an 
effective board of directors, and have established many strong relationships with community partners and programs. We 
will continue to provide these services until every child in Columbia County is able to live a life free from abuse. 



Description of Assessment Program and Positions 

The purpose of this project is to ensure that alleged child abuse victims in Columbia County are provided with 
quality medical and forensic evaluations and support services in a timely manner while in a secure and child
friendly environment. The number of requests for evaluation services has continued to increase each year 
since the opening of the center in 2003. Increasing the capacity of our Assessment Program is a vital step in 
the strategic development of our agency. It will enable us to assist child abuse victims with a timely, 
specialized and comprehensive child abuse medical and forensic assessment in a child friendly environment. 

The demand for our services is staggering, because child abuse is now at epidemic levels. Studies show that 
every 36 seconds one child in the United States is neglected/abused-and that one in every four girls and one 
in every six boys will be sexually abused by the time they are 18 years of age. 

Since our incorporation in 2000, we have provided Child Abuse Forensic Assessments to over 1320 
children/adolescents. The Forensic Assessment is conducted by a team, which includes a highly trained Child 
Forensic Interviewer, a Board Certified Registered Nurse Practitioner or Medical Doctor, and a Family Support 
Specialist. The process includes a digitally recorded interview using Oregon Interviewing Guidelines, a full 
medical examination using Oregon Medical Guidelines, a determination of abuse, the identification of 
appropriate treatment, the creation of a safety plan and a referral(s) for follow-up care. In 2018, the Amani 
Center provided 246 assessment services to children. 

Forensic Interviewer: 
The purpose of the Forensic Interviewer program is to provide children with a skilled child abuse forensic 
interview by a certified Child Forensic Interviewer. The forensic interview is often times partnered with a 
medical assessment, which includes a complete physical examination, digitally recorded interview (using 
Oregon Interviewing Guidelines), determination of abuse, identification of appropriate treatment, and referral 
for follow-up care. 

The child victim will benefit from the Forensic Interview assessment program, as services will be provided in a 
sensitive manner in a child friendly setting. Based on the child's examination, referrals will be made to a 
therapist and/or specialist, as needed, as well as recommendations for developmental and/or mental health 
evaluations. Moreover, caregivers will benefit from this service, as they will be able to consult with the 
professionals to discuss the child's needs and ways to facilitate the child's healing process. The child further 
benefits from the Forensic Interview assessment program because the videotape as well as the Forensic 
Interviewer's assessment and treatment recommendations can be used in Grand Jury in place of the child. 
This allows the child to heal further without having to re-tell their disclosure to more strangers. We anticipate 
that over 350 referrals for suspected child abuse victim Forensic Interview assessments will be received during 
a one-year period. 

Child Abuse Medical Examiner: 

The Medical Examiner provides highly skilled and specialized head-to-toe medical evaluations to alleged 
victims of child abuse and/or domestic violence. The use of a specialized piece of machinery called a 
colposcope (used for good light and magnification) is used to assess sexual abuse and to capture quality 
photographs of physical injury. The Medical Examiner is the designated child abuse medical provider for all of 
Columbia County. As such, the Medical Examiner may serve as a trainer/consultant regarding child abuse 
cases within Columbia County. The Medical Examiner provides quality and professional care based guided by 
Amani Center practice protocols and standards established by the Oregon Medical Child Abuse Guidelines. 

Intake/Family Support Services Specialist {FSSS}: 
The FSSS position has enabled the Amani Center to provide intake and support services for child victims of 
abuse and/or domestic violence and support and follow-up services for non-offending caregivers. Additional 
services offered by the FSSS have included information and referral, advocacy, and Crime Victims 
Compensation assistance. The FSSS provides support to the child and family pre, post and during the 
assessment process. 



Mission Statement: To provide forensic child abuse 

evaluations and support for children and their families who may have been 
impacted by abuse or neglect. 

The primary goal of the Center is to ensure that children (birth to 18 years of 
age) suspected to be victims of sexual abuse; physical abuse, emotional 
abuse, neglect, and/or domestic violence are provided with quality 
evaluative and support services in a child-friendly setting. 

Amani Center Board of Directors Membership list 

Stacia Tyacke - Chair 
Dave Wasylenko - Vice-Chair 
Tami McDonald - Secretary 
Toni Nelson - Treasurer 

Stan Mendenhall - Board Member 
Molly Hruska - Board Member 
Matt Edwards - Board Member 

Amani Center Staff list 
Cassy M. Miller - Executive Director 
Beth Pulito - Fund raising & Outreach Coordinator 
Maria Fenstermaker- Administrative Assistant 

Amelia Kercher - Program Manager 
Nick Schwarz - Forensic Interviewer 
Aaron Brown - Forensic Interviewer, Intake & Family Support Services Specialist 
Terrianne MacEllven - Intake & Family Support Services Specialist, Forensic Interviewer 
Ellen Sperl - Intake & Family Support Services Specialist 

Linda Eddy- Medical Examiner 
Roberta Bentson-Royal - Medical Examiner 
Heather Sutton - Medical Biller 



COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICATION 

Sponsor: CASA for Children, Inc. 

Tax ID# 93-0923866 

C t t P 
Betsy Stark Miller, Executive Director on ac erson: __________ _ 

Daytime Phone 503 988 5115 

Address: 2514 Sykes Rd. 

City: St. Helens State:_O_R __ Zip: 97051 

Signature:-~~ 
5 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

RECEIVED 

r··v 'Ir 2019 
' "Ii '~ v 

Y: ..... """""'"""" ··,,············ .. ·· 

Project Title Amount Funds Requested: Needed by*: 

CASAs for Columbia County $$5,000 9/30/2019 
---------------
*Availability of funds is contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the State 

Proposed schedule 

Project Start Date: 7 /1 /2019 Project Completion Date: 6/30/2020 

4 

-I 



Project Description: 

CASA for Children helps keep children safe when they have been abused and 
neglected, removed from their families, and placed in the protective custody of the 
juvenile court. Our organization, serving Multnomah, Washington & Columbia counties, 
recruits, trains, and supervises volunteer Court Appointed Special Advocates called 
CASAs. The CASA idea is simple but powerful. A CASA from the local community visits 
with a child or teen in foster care as often as possible, gathers information, attends 
court dates and family decision meetings, and speaks up for the child for the entire term 
of his or her stay in foster care. The CASA's sole responsibility is to advocate for the 
children's rights and best interests, help protect them from the dangers of their situation, 
help get them the services they need to stay physically and mentally healthy, and help 
find them a safe, permanent home. 

City of Scappoose CEP funds will be used to recruit, train, supervise, and retain an 
increased number of CASAs in Scappoose and Columbia County. Columbia County 
sends children into foster care at one of the highest rates in Oregon. Last year there 
were 132 Columbia County kids in foster care. An average stay in foster care is two 
years, although older children are likely to stay much longer. 

Former foster children suffer from depression, anxiety, and PTSD at twice the rate of 
others their age. Only a small percentage get an education beyond high school and, as 
adults, former foster children are much more likely than others their age to experience 
poverty and homelessness. If children are able to have the benefit of a CASA advocate, 
their circumstances are improved in the short-term and, in the long term, they are more 
likely to attain stability as adults. CASAs get better results for their kids because they 
are able to concentrate on the needs of one child, or a small group of children. 

When children have a CASA, they: 
• are twice as likely to receive counseling while in care; 
•spend, on average, eight fewer months in foster care; 
• move from home to home fewer times. On average, children without a CASA move 6.6 
times while children with a CASA average 3.9 moves; 
• do better in school. Studies show they are more likely to pass courses, behave better, 
and avoid expulsions; 
• are far less likely to come back into the child welfare system after being reunited with 
their family, adopted, or placed in a guardianship. 

CASAs also benefit our communities financially. With a CASA to guide them, a child 
leaves the child welfare system faster than those without a CASA, saving the State of 
Oregon on average $24,375 per child in court and foster care costs. 

During the 2019-2020 fiscal year, if our project is funded, CASA for Children projects we 
will serve 92 children from Columbia County, including 8 children in Scappoose, ages 
birth thru 18. As a result, we hope to achieve more success stories like Justin's*. 



Justin's learning disability, coupled with irregular attendance in the past due to his living 
circumstances, had him many years behind his peers academically. He needed 
intensive help with reading. Because of his CASA's advocacy he was able to receive 
tutoring 5 days per week. His guardian reported to the CASA "Justin worked very hard 
this summer and the results are amazing! The best part of the tutoring is that his 
confidence is building and he is attempting to read things! Before the tutoring, he would 
avoid reading at all costs. He would avoid playing family games and ask others to read 
things for him only if absolutely necessary. Mostly he would avoid situations entirely and 
isolate himself. Justin has noticed his improvement and excitedly read a book to his 
aunt to show her his progress in reading! He has a lot of work to do but this is a very 
successful start". Every child that goes into the court system without a well-trained 
CASA represents a missed opportunity for a better outcome. 

*Name has been changed 



Explain how this project would enhance the Community while achieving 
one of the values described in the Scappoose Vision Statement and/or City 
Council Goals? 

CASA for Children in Columbia County meets the CEP eligibility criteria in a number of 
ways. It benefits youth, low income persons, and underserved populations. All of the 
children we serve, due to their circumstances, are very low income. When children enter 
foster care, case workers in the child welfare system (OHS) struggle under heavy 
caseloads and are not able to provide many of the services children need to keep them 
safe and healthy. A trained CASA advocate is able to focus his or her full attention on a 
single child or a small family group during the time they are in foster care, visit them 
frequently to see that they are safe, and apply their efforts to resolving the child or 
children's situations so that they can be reunited with their family or move on to 
adoption or guardianship. 

The district attorney may have more than 70 current cases, the individual attorneys are 
likely to have 50 or more, and the OHS social worker will be responsible for the welfare 
of 25-30 children. All are struggling with heavy caseloads and as a result there is no 
time for deep consideration and attention to detail. The judge will often turn to the 
CASA's report first because CASAs stay with their children for their entire time in foster 
care. The judge will ask the CASA to address the court and, four times out of five, the 
judge will implement the CASA's recommendations. 

CASA for Children's Columbia County program also contributes to the "Lifelong 
Learning" aspiration of the City Vision Statement by helping to provide educational 
opportunities for all ages and ability levels. The CASA Educational Advancement 
Project specifically supports educational achievement for children in foster care by 
training and supporting CASA volunteers as they remove barriers and improve the 
circumstances for children's academic progress. 

Educational stability and progress are the best predictors of success for foster children. 
Foster kids have lower standardized test scores, lower academic progress, drop out at a 
higher rate, and have challenges in developing social and peer relationships. Because 
many children entering foster care are falling behind in school when they are removed 
from their families and fall further behind while they are in foster care, CASA for 
Children is committed to focusing on appropriate goals for CASAs and children to aim 
for while children are in foster care. 

This grant will be used to provide CASAs training in educational advocacy. CASAs are 
trained to remove barriers to success, advocate in the classroom, and work to obtain 
tutoring, transportation, or help their CASA child get an individual education plan (IEP). 
Behaviors that are the result of trauma, or symptomatic of recognized disabilities such 
as Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (AOHD), can often appear to be simply bad 
behavior. CASAs work with teachers to help them understand the difference. In school, 
children with CASAs are shown to pass more courses and have fewer behavior 
problems. 



PROJECT BUDGET 

Total Estimated Costs: $234,651 
How were these costs estimated (quotes, catalog, previous projects, etc.)? 

Costs were based on previous 3 years of organizational expenditures 
Breakdown estimated 

costs by source: 
CEP Sponsor Other #1 Other#2 

Personnel Services 4,025 34,500 97,500 77,354 

Supplies 250 1,000 2,500 5,000 

Capital 

Materials 375 1,500 5,500 

Other 350 497 3,000 1,300 

Total 5,000 35,997 104,500 89,154 

% of Total Budget provided by Sponsor: 15 % 

Is there secure funding for Sponsor's share of the total costs? Does the project 
include funding from other public or private agencies and what are the sources of 
funding? 

CASA for Children receives secure funding from the State of Oregon through the Department 

Administrative Services for each of the counties we serve ($35,997 for Columbia County). 

Other #1: We also receive funding from a mix of local, state, and national funding sources. This 

includes Columbia Pacific CCO, $15,000; NW Natural, $10,000; Joseph E. Weston Public Foundation, $30,000; 

and the James & Shirley Rippey Family Foundation, $15,000. 

Pending are proposals to the Reser Family Foundation for $10,000 and the Ford Family Foundation for $10,000. 

Other #2 includes funds from our local Columbia County recognition event and individual contributions, 

as well as allocated proceeds from annual events like the golf tournament and our auction/dinner. 

7 



PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Provide a brief narrative outlining the major tasks and projected time 
schedule for completing of each task. 
During fiscal year 2019-2020 we plan to serve 92 children in Columbia County. All of 
the activities of the project: recruiting, training, and supervising are ongoing throughout 
the year. 

Our recruitment staff and local Program Manager will make an estimated two 
presentations per month at local organizations including chambers of commerce, 
schools, community events, fairs, and places of worship. They will meet and talk with 
people who have an interest in being a CASA and schedule orientations for prospective 
CASAs, accept applications, and arrange interviews. In addition recruitment staff will 
place advertisements and brochures at local businesses and public buildings 

Whenever there are five or more new recruits, staff will schedule a 35-hour training so 
that CASAs can learn while their interest is high. The Program Manager, CASA 
Supervisors from Portland and Hillsboro, and speakers from a range of child service 
non-profits will take part in 3 training sessions next year with the goal of assigning 15 
new CASAs. These trainings are held specifically for Columbia County residents, in 
Columbia County, rather than the Portland area in order to remove barriers to 
participation, specifically travel time and cost. 

The Columbia County Program Manager and Recruitment Specialist will lead these 
efforts with support from the central office in Portland including the Executive Director, 
Development Director, Program Director, Recruitment Manager, and front office staff. 



Have you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the past? If 
so, was the project successful? Please describe: 
Yes, CASA for Children received $3,454 in 2015, $3,732 in 2016, $4,088 in 2017 and 

$4, 133 in 2018. This increasing investment over the years illustrates both the need for 

these services and the benefit they provide the community. 

CASA for Children's Columbia County office opened in January 2015 with a small 

group of CASAs from the previous program serving 24 children. With the help of the 

City of Scappoose CEP grants, we have grown to serve 92 children this year, meeting 

our goal for the year. In fact, we exceeded our goal of 40 total active CASAs by 3. 

During fiscal year 2020 our goal is to recruit and train an additional 20 new CASAs in 

order to serve 110 children. 

Applications must be submitted by 3:00 pm, May 29, 2019, at Scappoose City 
Hall, 33568 East Columbia Avenue. Please limit question responses to the spaces 
provided. 

Scappoose Motto 
Small Town, Big Community 

9 



CONIMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICATION 

Sponsor: _____ _Fdends of Scappoose Parks (City of Scappoose) 

Tax ID# 93-6002251 

Contact Person: Dana Pricher 

Daytime Phone 541-490-7476 
.~~~~~~-----------------------~ 

Address: 32758 NW Bella Vista Dr 

City: Scappoose 

/~ ' ,. 
Signature: l ./~ -""" 

~ ,,? 
,! 

I 

PROJECf INFORMATION 

Project Title 

State: OR Zip: 97056 

~I 
\Vv'c~ ~ 

Amount Funds Requested: Needed by*: 

Earth Day Festival and Regular Volunteer Service projects: $2600 July 1, 2019 
*Availability of funds is contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the State 

Proposed schedule 

Project Start Date: July 1, 2019 Project Completion Date: June 30, 2020 

Project Description: 

The Friends of Scappoose Parks will be the chief organizing entity for the 2020 
Scappoose Earth Day Festival. The event will be held in April 2020 and will consist of 
volunteer service projects such as planting trees and flowers in a city park(s). or 
surrounding area, trash cleanup, and other projects to enhance the natural environment. 
Additionally, live music, food, and educational/informational booths from local and 
regional organizations focused on sustainable living practices and recreational 
involvement will be present at the event. The event will be free and open to the public, 
so that all residents of Scappoose and surrounding communities may participate. 
Friends requests $1600 for materials and supplies to successfully conduct the 2020 
Scappoose Earth Day Festival. 

In addition to the 2020 Earth Day Festival, Friends has regularly scheduled 
service days where residents. can spend a Saturday morning with neighbors working on 
a service project, doing minor clean-up events, and experience the outdoor 

1 



opportunities that the City has to offer. Friends does not currently have tools that can aid 
volunteers in these efforts and has relied upon tools brought by volunteers and loaned 
by friends and family members. Friends requests$ 1000_for tools and materials for use 
on volunteer service projects. 

Explain how this project would enhance the Community while achieving one of 
the values described in the Scappoose Vision Statement and/or City Council 
Goals? 

This project will benefit the Scappoose community by helping to build a sense of pride 
and ownership of our local parks and outdoor spaces. The Scappoose Vision Statement 
includes: building a caring community, local pride and passionate stewardship. These 
events will help citizens to connect with each other, with their public spaces and the 
environment. The projects foster civic engagement by encouraging people to interact 
with their neighbors and to be a part of the public process. They build local pride by 
enhancing our public spaces with natural beauty and opportunities for learning. The 
Earth Day festival includes many opportunities for residents to learn about sustainable 
practices and environmental stewardship while the service projects provide 
opportunities for hands-on care and interaction with the environment. 

Finally, the service projects completed during the Earth Day festival and work days have 
long-lasting benefits that extend beyond just the day of the event by enhancing our local 
parks and open spaces for all to enjoy. 

PROJECT BUDGET 

Total Estimated Costs: $6700 
How were these costs estimated (quotes, catalog, previous projects, etc.)? 
_Previous projects, catalogs __ 

Breakdown estimated costs by source: 
CEP Sponsor Other#1 

Personnel Services 500 3375 

Supplies/tools 550 50 100 

Plants/Materials 1000 500 

Food/music vendor 250 
Other (marketing) 300 75 . 

"--·---···· '-......,._""'---..:.......-'--. 

Total 2600 4000 100 ------ --------- .. ·-"·-·" ... ·.· -

% of Total Budget pi ovided by Sponsor: 60% 

Other#2 

2 



Is there secure funding for Sponsor's share of the total costs? Does the project 
include funding from other public or private agencies and what are the sources of 
funding? 

Sponsor will primarily provide personnel services to plan and coordinate events 
and service projects with City Staff and by providing volunteers the day of the events as 
needed. $1000 of Sponsor funds will be donations and services from local businesses 
and groups to provide music, food, materials, and marketing services for the events. In 
addition, Sponsor will apply for $100 tool/material grant from SOLV Oregon for supplies 
related to service projects the 2020 Scappoose Earth Day Festival. 

The budget estimates are based on the Earth Day Festival that Friends of 
Scappoose Parks planned in conjunction with the City of Scappoose and the 
Scappoose Library in April 2019. The estimates for tools and materials for service 
projects are based on the current prices at ACE Hardware and Scappoose Sand and 
Gravel. 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Provide a brief narrative outlining the major tasks and projected time schedule for 
completing of each task. 

For Earth Day Event planning will begin approximately 4 months in advance. 
2-4 months prior to event 

• Set date and Schedule of event activities in coordination with the City of 
Scappoose 

• Design Press kit for marketing and distribute marketing materials; marketing 
materials to be distributed on a regular basis up until the event 

1-2 months prior to event 
• Secure commitments from music providers (bands) and food vendors 
• Obtain permits from City/County as needed 
• Determine Earth Day service project locations and design 
• Contact partner organizations for booths (Earth Day) and supplies (tables, 

dishware, trash) 
• Contact plant and landscaping vendors and/or non-profit organizations (such as 

the Garden Club or Scappoose Bay Watershed Council) for willingness to 
provide in-kind donations 

• Identify willing volunteers for coordination of day-of operations of the event 
• Develop event agenda 

1-2 weeks prior to event 
• Acquire plant and landscape material for planting projects 
• Prepare planting area and service project framework 
• Deliver and stage service project materials for event 
• Acquire materials and supplies for crafts and games 

3 



• Check-in with, distribute instructions, assign roles for volunteers 
Day of Event 

• Day-of setup 
• Manage operations of volunteers participating in the event 
• Clean up and take down of event site 
• Provide debrief for City newsletter and local press 

SERVICE PROJECTS TIMELINE 

Ongoing planning with other local groups such as Historical Society, Garden Club, Boy 
Scouts, CZ Trail Committee and Parks Dept to identify projects. 

1 to 2 weeks prior to service day - finalize project details and make supply list. 

2 weeks prior send out newsletter and Facebook posts to notify volunteers, confirm 
project with Public Works Dept 

1 week prior - secure materials for project, continue contacting volunte'ers 

Day of - stage materials and tools, coordinate volunteers, clean-up 

Follow up - post pies of completed projects on FB, email list 

Have you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the past? 
If so, was the project successful? Please describe: 

No, Friends of Scappoose Parks has not received the CEP grant in the past. 
Friends cosponsored and organized the 2019 Earth Day Festival with the City of 
Scappoose and the Scappoose Library. The event, the first year such an event has 
been held, was a success that approximately 100 people atter1ded. This project would 
build on the success of and insights from the 2019 event to improve and expand it for 
next year. Service Projects completed in March, April ;and May of 2019 relied on the 
use of personal tools from volunteers and tools borrowed from local pa1tners (City of 
Scappoose, Scappoose Bay Watershed Council). 

Applications must be submitted by 3:00 pm, May 29, 2019, at Scappoose City 
Hall, 33568 East Columbia Avenue. Please limit question responses to the spaces 
provided. 

Scappoose Motto 
Small Town, ig ornlllt1r1ity 

4 



R 

r ' r-. I 
I i / t 

VED 

2019 

COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICATION BY: ... .......................... . 

Sponsor.~~- -?ch.ru\ D~ I 

Contact Person: Jolene Jonas ----------
Daytime Phone_503 543-2873 _____ _ 

Address:_28250 Hafferman Rd __________ _ 

City:_Scappoose ___ State:_OR __ Zip: 97056 __ _ 

Signature: ~= 9 ~ 
PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Title Amount Funds Requested: Needed by*: 

Annual Mike Sheehan Chess Tournament $_3,500_ 9/1/2019 __ _ 
*Availability of funds is contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the State 

Proposed schedule 

Project Start Date:_9/1/2019 __ Project Completion Date:_3/31/2020 __ _ 

1 



Project Description: 

Mike Sheehan was a well loved and respected member of our community for decades. 
When he passed in 2018, we decided to do something special in his memory. Since he 
was such an avid chess player, teaching the sport to generations of children, we 
organized a chess tournament in his name (logo in attachment). 60+ students and their 
families from around the PNW region came to Scappoose High School to participate in 
the chess competition. Students from K through 12 represented a sea of diversity 
where everyone was treated with respect. As the students competed, parents explored 
our city, shopped in our stores, ate in our restaurants. The event was a complete 
success. 
Based on that experience, we decided it should become an annual event. We believe it 
is important that students can have fun in a competitive event focused on intellectual vs 
physical skills such as football or basketball. 
In addition, the Sheehan family is donating three tournament quality chess sets to each 
of the Scappoose schools. 

2 



Explain how this project would enhance the Community while achieving one of 
the values described in the Scappoose Vision Statement and/or City Council 
Goals? 

Our goals and objectives for the event are as follows: 
Promote lifelong learning by encouraging the advancement of chess skills while 
providing an environment that increases cultural diversity, 
Promote local pride by sharing our historical/cultural artifacts with the families who 
participate in the event, 
Promote and support our local businesses as the attending families explore what our 
city has to offer, 
Align with Friends of Scappoose Parks, providing a map of our city parks for exploration 
during and after the competition, 
Grow community outreach by bringing in families from throughout the PNW region who 
have never visited our city, 
Create a marketing/branding program via an annual event that more and more families 
will attend, 
Promote and support local tourism, again via the new families that find their way to our 
city/county, 
Help create a unique Scappoose "brand" of a small town that encourages and honors 
intellectual achievement. 

3 



PROJECT BUDGET 

Total Estimated Costs: _$3,500 _ 
How were these costs estimated (quotes, catalog, previous projects, etc.)? 
Previous project, with adjustments based on what we learned 
_Breakdown estimated costs by source: 

CEP Sponsor Other #1 Other #2 
Personnel Services $3,000* 
Supplies $500** 
Capital $600*** 

Materials 
Other 

Total $3,500 $600 
*Ryan Svenson to coordinate all aspects of the event 
** Medals/Plaques 
*** Scappoose School facility costs 
**** Tshirts for participants/volunteers 

% of Total Budget provided by Sponsor:_ 12_% 

$500**** 

$500 

Is there secure funding for Sponsor's share of the total costs? Does the project 
include funding from other public or private agencies and what are the sources of 
funding? 
Yes, 
We anticipate $20 per participant to cover their participation plus a Tshirt. This will not 
cover all our expenses. We anticipate an additional $600 to $800 from other sponsors. 
Last year's primary sponsors were Pat and Mary Kessi, as well as Phillip Margolin, a 
prominent Oregon author. 
Last year's attendance was 60. We hope to double it this time. 

4 



PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Provide a brief narrative outlining the major tasks and projected time schedule for 
completing of each task. 
Plan and organize the successful implementation of the annual Mike Sheehan Memorial Chess 
Tournament (MSMCT). This is to be a sanctioned Oregon Scholastic Chess Federation (OSCF) event; 

Organization of the event to include but not limited to the reservation of school facilities, coordination 
of the event with OSCF, management of registration, making arrangements for food services and 
custodial services, solicitation and training of volunteers and the design and purchase of official 
tournament t-shirts using the designated logo; 

Promote the legacy and memory of Mike Sheehan as it relates to chess, strategic thinking* and 
community involvement. At whatever level the Sheehan family wants to be involved, include them in 
planning and conducting the event; 

Develop a budget and secure sponsors as needed. Recognize sponsors in a meaningful manner; 

Utilize the resources of OSCF; 

Showcase the City of Scappoose, whose motto is "Small Town, Big Community", for its livability, parks, 
unique history, recreational opportunities and good schools. Keep the City Council and the City Park and 
Recreation Committee apprised of tournament details and plans. The City of Scappoose is the primary 
sponsor of the tournament; 

Partner and work cooperatively with the Scappoose School District (SSD) in planning, scheduling and use 
of facilities. The SSD is one of the main sponsors of this event; 

Advertise the MSMCT in our extended community. Utilize social media as appropriate; 

As much as possible, encourage the establishment of chess clubs in each of the Scappoose schools, the 
two charter schools, local private schools and the home school community; 

Promote and create ways to drive visitors and participants to local businesses and sites of interest 
during their visit; 

*Having students learn strategic thinking was important to Mike Sheehan. As a well-respected attorney, 

he served as the legal advisor to the Scappoose High School Mock Trial team. Mock Trial is a national 

program. Under his leadership and that of the sponsoring teacher, SHS teams did exceptionally well in 

local and regional competition. Playing chess teaches strategic thinking skills. 

Have you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the past? 
If so, was the project successful? Please describe: 

No 

Applications must be submitted by 3:00 pm, May 29, 2019, at Scappoose City 
Hall, 33568 East Columbia Avenue. Please limit question responses to the spaces 
provided. 

5 



VED 

L .Y ti 4 2019 

COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICAT <Bftl: ............. --.............. . 

Sponsor: £u.,,;-h Colu-vvtb,~ Cou.-4\,~ CkC<.~\?e.r <le} Ccn<..<\?<~-l 

Tax ID# --------------

Contact Person: tbpe W1'vb 

Daytime Phone 5=c 3- 397- 06 ~) 

Blv!. 
01\, Zip: /7D) l 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Title Amount Funds Requested: Needed by*: 

_w_-_l~---,-+--J_d-_c,J_· _i¥1.6?_e_ls~tx_a_l_Cf __ $ ,?OCX) o.i-

*Availability of funds is contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the State 

Proposed schedule 

Project Start Date: ~ - I 7 - I 'f Project Completion Date: S - / 7 -/ <( 

4 



Project Description (a short description of the proposed program or project 
inch.11ding· for what purpose or how the CEP funds wm be used). Also, please 
estimate how many residents will be served or benefit if this project is funded. 

Wings and Wheels is a community event held at the Scappoose Airpark 
and features a unique set of attractions including gyroplanes, classic car 
cruise-ins, motorcycles, military vehicles, race cars, model train exhibit, 

music, local vendors, kids activities, food, brews, and much more. 

I have included a flyer at the end of this package with more information 
pertaining to the event. 

We are anticipating over 3,000 people will attend this year's event. 



Explain how this project would enhance the Community while achieving one of the 
values described in the Scappoose Vision Statement and/or City Council Goals? 

This event is currently the only festival in the city of Scappoose. The 
cities vision discusses a connected community and local civic pride. This 
event connects local business partners and celebrates our airport. 

Additionally, this year, we have partnered with the Northwest Antique 
Airplane Club, and Highway 30 Cruisers to add more collaboration to 
the community (these have been separate events in the past). 

The Port of St Helens has been instrumental each year in helping us put 
this on, and have, once again, continued to support this. 

We will also have a half-marathon race to start the day that includes 
running around Honeyman Road. Any additional pressure you can place on the 

mayor to run all 13.1 miles would be appreciated! 

Yh ;s '-1 e=¥ we ~ cJJ., ~ c. 5"\:.-- y....__ V\ C\.S 

welt 



PROJECT BUDGET 

Total Estimated Co.sts: -----
How were these costs estimated (quotes, catalog, previous 

Breakdown estimated 
costs by source: 

Sponsor Other#1 Other 
Services 

Supplies 

Capital 

Materials 
Other 

Total 

% of Total Budget provided by Sponsor: % 

Is there secure funding for Sponsor's share of the total costs? Does the project 
include funding from other public or private agencies and what are the sources of 
funding? 

Yes, the event is run by sponsorships from both public and private 
entities. 



PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

Provide a brief narrative outlining the major tasks and projected time schedule for 
completing of each task. 

We will be on-boarding sponsors through the middle of August to 
maximize exposure, and to ensure the community is presented with the 
most complete vendor line-up. 

Until that date we will be recruiting as many vendors as possible. 

We will be advertising and trying to get as many runners as possible, 
too, for the half-marathon. 

Volunteers will also be a big push for us. We will endeavor to get as 
many for the race portion {around the course) as possible. This will 
continue until the day before the actual race. 

A lot will follow the same format as last year. 



Have you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the past? If 
so, was the project successful? Please describe: 

We have received this grant in the past and it has been extremely 
succes~ful because of that. The grant is very important to the success of 
the event, and we thank you for your kind award last year. 

Applications must be submitted by 3:00 pm, May 29, 2018, at Scappoose City 
Hall, 33568 East Columbia Avenue. Please limit question responses to the spaces 
provided. 

Scappoose Motto 
Small Town, Big Community 



South Columbia County 
Chamber of Commerce 

SCtg7_1700Se ftj; In/ Crztise In 
1Yt1111s &: JYliee/S 2019 

Saturday, August 17, 2019 / 9:00am - 5:00 pm 

Sponsor Information 

We invite you to become a sponsor of the Scappoose Fly in I Cruise in Wings & Wheels 2019 
Festival. Hosted in partnership with the South Columbia County Chamber of Commerce, 

Highway 30 Cruisers and the Northwest Antique Airplane Club, we bring you a one-of-a-kind 
Community Event. Held at the Scappoose Airpark, Wings & Wheels features a unique set of 

attractions including airplanes, gyroplanes, classic car cruise in, motorcycles, military vehicles, 
music, vendors, kids' activities, food, brews and more! 

Planes I Cars I Bikes I Vendors/ Music I Food I Kids' Activities I Beer Garden I Military Vehicles I 
Helicopters I Half Marathon/ And Morel! 

Scappoose Industrial Airpark 
53835 Airport Road, Scappoose, OR 97056 

This event features the combined strengths of the partners, each of whom bring a long history of 
successful events. Cars, planes, food, beer garden, vendors ... this community festival has something for 
everyone! 2019 promises to be a bigger event than previous years reaching a significantly wider 
audience an ensuring a higher attendee count. Your sponsor commitment will place you in front of a 
large market reach spanning multiple communities. 

We eagerly look forward to hosting Wings & Wheels 2019 and hope you will join us as a sponsor of this 
outstanding opportunity. 

General Admission is free/ Expected attendance is over 4000 
About the South Columbia County Chamber of Commerce 

The South Columbia County Chamber of Commerce is the go-to place for information about local businesses and the 
South Columbia County area. The Chamber serves as a connector, supporter and advocate promoting the general 

welfare, prosperity and economic growth of the business community. The Chamber seeks to increase opportunities for 
businesses and build collaborative efforts contributing to the vitality of our region. 

Strength of Business is our Priority 



We hope you will join us as a sponsor of the Scappoose Fly In / Cruise In Wings & Wheels 2019 
Festival 

The Event is an excellent opportunity to market your business directly to over 4000 Event attendees and to 
10,000+ community supporters through websites, social media, partner media and Event advertising. 

$5,000 Presenting Sponsor 

• Sponsor will be promoted and named on the front of program as, Wings & Wheels 2018 presented by (Your 
Business Name). Must commit by 6/15 

• Sponsor will receive verbal recognition during the Event - approximately hourly 30 second commercials by DJ 
• Sponsor may provide up to 3 signs/banners to be displayed at the Event (not to exceed 3' x 5') 
• Sponsor will be featured at the top of the Wings & Wheels webpage as Presenting Sponsor 
• Sponsor will be Spotlighted in Event social media posts 
• All benefits listed below 

$2,500 Premier Sponsor 

• Sponsor will receive verbal recognition during the Event - four (4) 30 second commercials by DJ 
• Sponsor may provide two signs/banners to be displayed at the Event (not to exceed 3' x 5') 
• Sponsor will be featured in Event social media posts 
• Sponsor will be featured on the Wings & Wheels webpage 
• All benefits listed below 

$1,000 Supporting Sponsor 

• Sponsor logo will appear on Event print materials, including the Event activities program 
• Sponsor logo will appear on Wings & Wheels webpage 
• Sponsor will be recognized in Event social media posts 
• Sponsor will be recognized on Event related press releases sent to local print and TV media 
• Complimentary 10' x 20' booth in the vendor area 
• Sponsor will receive verbal recognition during the Event - approximately hourly acknowledgements by DJ 
• All benefits listed below 

$500 Community Sponsor 

• Sponsor will receive verbal recognition during the Event - four ( 4) acknowledgements by DJ 
• All benefits listed below 

$250 Friend Sponsor 

• Sponsor name will appear on Event print materials, including the Event activities program 
Must commit by 7 /15 

• Sponsor will be acknowledged on the Wings & Wheels webpage 
• Complimentary 10' x 10' booth in the vendor area 
• Sponsor may provide one sign/banner to be displayed at the Event (not to exceed 3' x 5') 



$5,000 Blitz Sponsor 

Wings & Wheels 2019 Half Marathon Race 
Sponsor Opportunities 

• Sponsor logo will appear prominently at the top of the Race bibs 
• Sponsor will receive verbal recognition during the race - four ( 4) 30 second commercials by DJ 
• Sponsor will be featured at the top pf the Race webpage and registration page as Blitz Sponsor 
• Sponsor will be spotlighted in Race social media posts 
• Sponsor will be featured on the South Columbia County Chamber of Commerce website prior to the Race or 

within one (1) month 
• All benefits listed below 

$2,500 Surge Sponsor 

• Sponsor logo will appear prominently on Race bibs 
• Sponsor will receive verbal recognition during the Race - two (2) 30 second commercials by DJ 
• Sponsor will be featured on the Race webpage and registration page as Surge Sponsor 
• Sponsor will be Spotlighted in Race Facebook page 
• All benefits listed below 

$1, 000 Dart Sponsor 

• Sponsor logo will appear on Race bibs 
• Sponsor logo will appear on Sponsor Recognition signage at Race start/finish 
• Sponsor logo will appear on the Race webpage and registration page as Dart Sponsor 
• Sponsor will be recognized in Race social media posts 
• All benefits listed below 

$500 Swift Sponsor 

• Sponsor logo (small) will appear on Race bibs 
• Sponsor will receive verbal recognition during the Race - two (2) acknowledgements by DJ 
• Sponsor logo will appear on the Race webpage and registration page as Swift Sponsor 
• All benefits listed below 

$250 Dash Sponsor 

• Sponsor name will appear on Race bibs - must commit by 7 /15 
• Sponsor be acknowledged at the start and finish of the Race - acknowledgements by DJ 
• Sponsor name will appear on the Race webpage and registration page as Dash Sponsor 
• Sponsor name will appear on Sponsor Recognition signage at Race start/finish 

Additional Sponsorships available: for example, Beer Garden, Trophies, Half Marathon, Parking ... 

The Event committee and Chamber staff are open to your suggestions regarding other ways we can help you 
promote your business. 

Participating supporters to Date 
Oregon Aero "' Port of Columbia County "' City of Scappoose "' Scott Burge Insurance 

More to be added ... ! 



Community Enhancement Project Application 
Sponsor: Columbia Humane Society 

Tax ID:93-0919021 
Contact Person: Lisa Beggio, CNED 

Daytime Phone: 503-369-7643 
Address: Box 845 
City: St.Helens / State: OR Zip: 97051 

(/ ~ 
signature:()(Aoo-- Ut....£f('V:S-l C. ntE.1> 

Project Information 

Project Title : Columbia County Dog Fair 

RECEIVED 

r. · .: zorn 
BY: ............................. . 

Amount Funds Requested: When Needed By: $1500.00/Upon Availability 

Proposed schedule 

Project Start Date: 09/07/2019 
Project Completion Date: 09/07/2019 



Project Description 

Our proposed event is the Columbia County Dog Fair, to take place in Veteran's Park on 
Saturday, September 7th. This fund.raiser for the Columbia Humane Society (CHS), vvill 
also provide a fun and educational event for Columbia County. We are still working on 
obtaining the necessary pennits. 

Once again our goal is to create a family fair experience for dogs and dog lovers alike. 
This be the second year that CHS has hosted this event. Last year it was hosted in 
conjunction with the Scappoose D.O.G. who have since disbanded as a 501(c)(3). We 
once again hope that this event will help to support the City of Scappoose's goals of 1D 
and 1E of the 2019-20 Council Goals and Objectives by providing a Scappoose-based 
destination event of interest. Our aim is to attract visitors from throughout Columbia 
County, and into the Portland tri-county METRO area, the Astoria area, and the 
Vancouver, and Longview/Kelso Communities in Washington. 

The opening of the fair will be roughly 10:00 am. All vendors will be in place and we 
will begin to start our demonstrations and games at this time. We would like to have as 
much public participation as possible throughout the event in various demonstrations, 
and other dog related activities. CHS would like to focus on education of the public 
about the humane treatment of animals, humane training, and the importance of 
spaying and neutering your pets to help ease the population of unwanted pets in our 
community. We would like to encourage local vendors and businesses in the area, along 
with food vendors, to attend the event. 



Columbia County Dog Fair 2019 Budget 

ttem 

Printing/Advertising 

Garbage Disposal 

Electronics 

Ribbons 

Volunteer Care 

Misc Items 

Total Estimate 

Budget Actual Cost 

$700.00 

$45.00 

$75.00 

$50.00 

$200.00 

$600.00 

$1.670.00 

ls there secure funding for Sponsor's Share of total Costs? Does the project Include funding from other public or private agencies and what are the sources of funding? 

Yes, funding is secure. Worse case scenario. if no other funding sources (ie grant and sponsorships) are obtained.then CHS will pick up the cost of putting the event on from our fundraising budget. 

Steps are currently in place to obtain platinum/gold/silver sponsorships for businesses andlor individuals, alng with the proposed grant request. 



Project Management 

Planning stages of the event are already happening. We have started working on 
obtaining the permit from the City of Scappoose. We have started working on Vendors, 
as we11 as games and activities that will be occurring during the event. we 
final permit from the City we will start advertising the event. 

This event will require closing off Roger Kucera Way on Saturday, as a safety 
consideration for expected children and dogs; and would utilize all of Veterans Park, 
including the dog park off-leash play area. 

Set up will begin around 7:00 am on September 7th, we will start putting out signs and 
such to direct people to the parking areas. Vendors will begin to arrive around 8:00 am, 
we vvill have a volunteer that will be managing vendors and vendor parking. 

At each entrance of the park we will have a volunteer that will be collecting cash 
donations for entry into the event. This is also the location that each person who is over 
the age of eighteen that is entering the event will have to sign a waiver ofliability. 

Events for the day will begin taking place at 10:00 am and will continue on until 3:00 
pm. We will then have clean up from 3:00 pm to 5:00 pm. We will leave the park in 
good condition with all garbage picked up and in the appropriate places, all signs will 
also be retrieved from the park. 

you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the 
so, was the project successful? Please describe: 

Yes, we did receive a grant last year for this project. The project we felt was very 
successful. We had a turn out of about seventy five people and their dogs to the event 
and a great time was had by all. The several different vendors we had, all had a 
wonderful time, and the activities that we had were a big hit, we are hoping to expand on 
all of those this year and make it even better. Over all we were able to raise just 
$3000.00 for CHS to help us continue our mission to assist the community in 
successful rehoming and training of adoptable animals. We look forward to bringing 
this event to Scappoose again this year. 



COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICATION 

IVED 

r .. r 2 •.\ 2019 

Scappoose Community Club BY: ...................... " ..... . 
Sponsor: ______________ _ 

EI N 93-0773464 
Tax ID# _____________ _ 

Angela Hammond 
Contact Person: -------------
Daytime Phone 5 03 - ~4q - LPL\\ \p 

P.O. Box 933 
Address: ---- ------------

Scappoose OR 97056 
City: ___________ State: ____ Zip: _____ _ 

Signatu~ 
PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Title Amount Funds Requested: Needed by*: 

Funding Music at the Farmers' Market 2500 Upon approval 
_________________ $ _____ _ 

*Availability of funds is contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the State 

Proposed schedule 
May18,2019 Sep28,2019 

Project Start Date: ______ Project Completion Date: _____ _ 

4 



Project Description: 
This project will return a full season of music and entertainment to the Scappoose 

Farmers' Market by restoring funding. Currently, the sponsor of the farmers market, the 

Scappoose Community Club, limited the FM music and entertainment budget to 

build our overall budget for other community projects. In years past, we received some 

supplemental support for music via CRPUD grant funding, but grant focus has shifted 

and our full season of music has been reduced to some key dates, or events, as a 

result. Still, our local musicians and customers enjoy music at the market. This project 

will fill this void. The Scappoose Community Club is a mutual benefit with members 

nonprofit (501 c4). The market is managed by volunteer manager, Bill Blank. 

The Market has covered music at the beginning of the market season. If approved, this 

grant will reimburse and cover music for the remainder of the season, allowing the 

Scappoose Community Club to use, what otherwise be an expense, for other various 

community projects such as Christmas and Holiday lighting, Clean Up Day, Welcome 

Island upkeep, and other community events during the summer, such as Movies in the 

Park, and participating in future planned events. 

Music adds to the festive mood of the community, enhancing the experience and 

creates a sense of joy and civic pride, while bringing others together at a popular 

community weekly gathering place throughout the summer months. 

5 



Explain how this project would enhance the Community while achieving one of the 
values described in the Scappoose Vision Statement and/or City Council Goals? 
GOAL 1 : Promote Economic Development Opportunities that create local jobs 

1 E. Promote and support local businesses 

The Scappoose Community Club Farmers' Market has been a job innovator for the 

community of Scappoose and outlining area for 17th years. Our vendors often use this 

venue to test business opportunities and demand for their talents. Over the years, 

some of ·our vendors have opened successful "brick and mortar" businesses and have 

developed supplier relationships with other established businesses. Musicians 

appearance at the market leverage their careers in music. The request enhances 

popular attraction and element to the market, while promoting the area and local 

vendors as well. It also seNes as a two-prong opportunity to support music and help 

self-starting businesses explore their potential. Our community has an amazing 

number of talented musicians and performers. The farmers' market is a great 

community venue for exposure, at the same time providing encouragement and 

financial support for that talent. In previous discussion with the City regarding how the 

city can help support the farmers' market as a local event, we determined an area 

where the Community Enhancement Project Grant Program fits this need best is filling 

a void and restoring sponsored music at the market, i.e., Goal 1 E. This would 

allow us to use what otherwise would be an expense, for other community projects. 

6 



PROJECT BUDGET 

$2500 
Total Estimated Costs: -----
How were these costs estimated (quotes, catalog, previous projects, etc.)? 
Previous projects 

Breakdown estimated 
costs by source: 

CEP Sponsor Other#1 Other#2 
Personnel Services NA NA NA l\IA 

Supplies 

Capital $2000 

Materials $ 300 

Other $ 200 

Total :.t>~bUU 

% of Total Budget provided by Sponsor: O % 

Is there secure funding for Sponsor's share of the total costs? Does the project 
include funding from other public or private agencies and what are the sources of 
funding? 

Market revenues initially cover the first two months for music. Other expenses include 

event promotional materials and advertising. Material expenses above include new 

event signage and a new music event canopy. CEP will cover and replace upfront 

expense. While the market will cover upfront expenses, the request is for full funding 

of this request, allowing the Club to build up revenues for other projects and 

future events benefiting and enhancing the community, attracting visitors and 

stimulating the local economy. 

7 



PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Provide a brief narrative outlining the major tasks and projected time schedule for 
completing of each task. 

The Farmers Market is open 9 a.m. to 2 p.m. every Saturday during the season. 

The opening date was May 18th and the final Market is on September 28th. 

This converts to 20 markets during the season. The project includes booking 20 music 

acts and promoting event. Purchasing a new event canopy and new sandwich board 

signage for event postings. The Community Club and revenues from the Farmers' 

market will secure event funding during this time line. CEP funds will be used to 

replace market expenses, upon approval. 

8 



Have you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the past? If 
so, was the project successful? Please describe: 

No 

Applications must be submitted by 3:00 pm, May 29, 2019, at Scappoose City 
Hall, 33568 East Columbia Avenue. Please limit question responses to the spaces 
provided. 

Scappoose Motto 
Small Town, Big Community 

9 



May 29, 2019 

Mayor and Council 

City Hall 

Scappoose, Oregon 97056 

Re: Community Enhancement Funds Application 

BY: ............................. . 

'We are pleased to have the opportunity to apply this year for these funds, and hope 
to have your favorable response to our request. 

For the new members of the Council, I did elaborate more fully on the history and 
function of the House and Museum to give you background information of our purposes 
and accomplishments. I hope the information will be helpful when considering this 
application. 

I would also like to invite any of you who would like to visit the Watts House to do so. 
We are a working museum and it is always changing. We like to keep it interesting and 
new for any repeat visitors. 

And before closing, thank you from all of us at the Historical Society for the taking 
care of major deferred maintenance items at the House. What a change and improvement, 
and we are very grateful. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Karen Holmberg 

President and Curator 

Cc: Michael Sykes 

City Manager 



RECEIVED 
l' :i ,~ 2 92019 

COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICATION 

Sponsor: ,~£)64 ~)~Q~ ~~'-LJ<v_,., rr 
................................ 

TaxlD# 9;3-09l7566 

Contact Person:~~ 
Daytime Phone ..S-6.3,/7' 7 6 -3 9 ~ 
Address: c;&o. ~ # ( 
City: L Lf'/PA=«L State: 0 8. Zip: Lj7DS6 

Signature:~ .e.,.,., r2?<_) _J$,,, ~ 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Title Amount Funds Requested: Needed by*: 

~ ~/£.dO..M:.NY\$ ___..-6"C500 .CO 
*Availability of funds is contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the State 

Proposed schedule 

Project Start Date: _____ ~_ Project ompletion Date: _____ _ 

4 



PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Watts House Pioneer Museum was established per the sales agreement with the 
Watts family so that the House could become a cultural center for the community, and a 
depository and reference archive for the history of the community and the families and their 
descendants who founded Scappoose. 

The House has a long history and has served many purposes: A residence for the Watts, a 
public library for twenty years while they lived at the House, a boarding house for teachers 
when the Watts could no longer navigate the stairs easily, City Council meetings were held 
at the House, and the City Charter was written in the parlor while Grant was the first mayor. 
It has been a rental for a time, City Hall, and finally the House was refurbished and is now a 
full-time museum. The House has survived several fires, and there are many documented 
stories that the House is haunted. 

We have the House open at least three days a week, but most weeks it's available more 
than that. We hold fund raisers such as our annual spring teas, harvest luncheon, a month
long Christmas celebration for the community, including visits from Santa, and participate 
with the Park's summer activities. Our volunteer students hold their fund-raising tea in the 
spring, and the House is available for rent. We give tours to the schools and other 
organizations upon request. 

We have a large archive of written documents and history, historical pictures, and artifacts. 
The last several years we have been spending a lot of time organizing these records, and 
now have most of them in fireproof and waterproof safes. We are continually receiving new 
donations and material. We are presently raising funds to redo and bring up to code the 
basement display cases and install locks. They were built in 1976, and are in bad need of 
repair, and to make them secure for our priceless artifacts. 

We will be starting oral histories soon primarily for the seniors who remember the early 
days of Scappoose. 

We also do a lot of research upon request, and I have written a story about the House for 
the Columbia County Museum Association in St. Helens to be in their next biannual 
publication. 

We have also begun distributing two of our history books compliments of Betsy Johnson's 
Foundation, but we are committed to finishing this project ourselves. The project is 
approximately half done. 

Since Rose Watts was one of the original members of the Garden Club, it has been my 
goal to assist the City with the flower beds and pruning for the benefit of the Park. 

The House has become a place to visit for tourists, we are open to the community and 
students, and it is available for their use. We think we are fulfilling the Watts' dream for the 
House, and the City's requirements for community enhancement funds. 

EXPLAIN HOW THIS PROJECT WOULD ENHANCE THE COMMUNITY WHILE 
ACHIEVING ONE OF THE VALUES DESCRIBED IN THE SCAPPOOSE VISION 
STATEMENT AND/OR CITY COUNCIL GOAL 

We believe our work would qualify according to the Scappoose Vision Statement under the 
sections Caring Community, Lifelong Learning, and Local Pride. 

We believe we meet all of the criteria to be eligible for funding. 



We have been involved with Council's Goal 5. While only a small part, we have done or 
are doing research for the Chief Concomly Park, Chapman Landing, and would like to 
provide information for the candle protection and restoration that I have available from the 
family and their personal pictures. They would gladly share this information with the City. 

IS THERE SECURE FUNDING FOR SPONSOR'S SHARE OF THE TOTAL COSTS? 
DOES THE PROJECT INCLUDE FUNDING FROM OTHER PUBLIC AND PRIVATE 
AGENCIES AND WHAT ARE THE SOURCES OF FUNDING? 

Our funding, besides the City's contribution, comes from membership and sponsor dues, 
fund raising activities, gift store, and private and corporate donations occasionally. The 
money we receive from the City dictates what projects and improvements can be 
accomplished. For example, we would like to distribute our history books to the libraries of 
the schools who do not have them already. Complete our display case funding so that we 
have secure display areas. We also have in mind other display expenses and projects to 
show more of what is available at the museum and to take advantage of the room available 
for more displays. This would include more displays of school materials, pictures of 
pioneers and original businesses, Chapman Landing artifacts, and so on. We do have 
personnel and contractual costs, but the members are very generous donating their time as 
are our vendors who provide services and materials at times; i.e. framer. Our goal is to 
invest as much as possible into the Museum itself and use only what we need to for 
professional services. I am personally paid $200/mo. as the curator of the museum. 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

Our work is ongoing and is always developing. The work is never done. The display cases 
we have the estimate and Willemse would be ready any time to begin the work. We 
already have $2,000 of the $2,800 needed for this project. The book printing would be 
immediate and in time for the new school year. The other display and records work would 
be ongoing. Our personnel costs are according to our schedule of events and when 
needed for special projects. We are also wanting to seek the services of a Native 
American expert to evaluate our collection of artifacts. We are constantly having to 
prioritize what we can do, but the above are some immediate objectives we would like to 
accomplish. 

Our funding is not part of a coordinated effort involving other organizations. We only 
participate independently when there are activities in the Park, but also with the City since 
you own the building. 

HAVE YOU RECEIVED A COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT GRANT FOR THIS PROJECT 
IN THE PAST? IF SO, WAS THE PROJECT SUCCESSFUL? PLEASE DESCRIBE: 

We have received annual funds to keep the House open and available to the public per the 
agreement the City had with the Watts when the House was purchased. I think the 
success of the ongoing work of the Scappoose Historic Society speaks for itself with the 
increasing interest and visitors to the House, and the attendance of our events and 
activities. We are very grateful for the ongoing support of the work we do. 



COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICATION 

Sponsor: 2:ro...pfIDl)Se_, ~ \t\f {!Jill S 

TaxlD# 93- PS1-1?2d-:V 
Contact Person: &wl.ond.Qv l _,DYlfj fzt(Vl 

Daytime Phone 503- 8LRLR- gtjo f 

Address: 3Lf 350 Heron /\A.QaQlbw ()R_ 

City: &a.p-ponsg_. State: Q'{2_ Zip: q·J Of}J 

Signature• GJ1A ~nJ.a_ R ~~ 
PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Title Amount Funds Requested: Needed by*: 

&a~ Ymclh fhd!.w/f.c_ $ 5, DOO-- i'±S 8:£'. 
*AvailablitYQf funds is contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the State 

Proposed schedule 

Project Start DateJ lt\Q_ 2 iJf' 
%l9 

Project Completion Date• Jv1j 

.l 

4 



Project Description: 

3c~sJL ·'<Oltlh fU.r_, Cinitr
1 

\r\1 l ! at ~ 
6i.tmRo±a-tzj \:) 0 . fu. CJ ... n-}Qr =for=~~ ~AlR!Y'\ 

'-±hL ~-" 4-13 ~ n fu__ preYiQl.di School war. 
~ con P'°11 \an,d ~J)'\1s, pi~ ?<1Y'l3 , fu:Dtlnl.l, Wi ~ 1 

\ O-\m.mu mJ ~M~1 ou!tioo~J ~ ~r ~ · ()rd___ ·:\ittR. \f\JeR~ 
-~itlcl =lY\¥'$ ±o'\-kiL~,tm.u\l~,(',~ frcpwW ro«-i 
arol o(OO) ~ Mw!hvo P°tJ a_ idD 01LM.bu&~.\h anJ 

, , ~s io 

ll. . 

lY\ovtie-s dJJro.,4eJ ~ +hi cl~ of ~a Pfn>s.B. CtJ"d_'fhg, K:J.~s 

Nie ~u~oorn: ~:±riv~ and buss[~ , l-t Q,l~o 

h~ -~ '~ &c 3 s·tafJl2-.:f)Jb of:WWcb url- ifaalar> 
\ (\ %1- 00-\bcJ- ard-- OY\L \ s an O£S. i ste.h-+ SR orettvcJ C\--\- Btt1J/\f-
W<lth ~ Ro..c~ '\s ~ M-cn-jk11n lD am-5prv1J 

tr~~<) OrR. jyi() dD-4 5 . Tu 1 10 c (J.h{er pvnvi ck> a._ safo.. . 

S\ !.pQ ndsecl p\.{ltl_ for #u chi\dreh o± 0(1 r Comrvi \.l.h ~ ~ -ti:> 

fut!.} c.Jt? Ml- pll.l{-J -)1u5 ~ear is ±W.- :J6 'th year -+tu.. R.tl, 

(jnter has b£R.n l n ~Xt'shan c.e. .. T ·-J- has a,l w a+JS 
b .. nn fu.noU.d o.ncL sponsore.J b!j ~ C.11fj tJ-?! 

Bcappoosg. and Yh!- SC/i..ppoos& ~- wttn.Ils. 

5 



Explain how this project would enhance the Community while achieving one of the 
values described in the Scappoose Vision Statement and/or City Council Goals? 

Cbmm.u ~'-tj fun-ts", '(fl! _ l\ ~ w..p 3cappoost 
<JN- of-:: ~ 5 S~r CnrDmu.a.111 es In 

1'r£~''1 a.net ~ 5 "" Ptn~ a.rd 
e.ohonc_Q ~Ks ard. ~ < oPpc:lr'i--! 1r\l'b~<h~". 

~ pnw.c± rw~±s ~s~ b lfQJ ilRJ -\-\tut 
~c... . C SLO+tr' IU.J. ps ~ ofP= '+h.L: s±r~~ 

QnCL tn ta , s a:Ge p lo UL, S .. L< p.uvi$..R&. 

'jhQ__ ~.c Onk.c is %2 QC\~ paas ard.-
ili.c eppoc-!-1,1nl~ '+AL ?.i.'tJ pu:ndd.fS 

6 

T 



PROJECT BUDGET 

Total Estimated Costs: $' </, q5D r=::::1, .· 
How were these costs estimated (quotes, catalog,,~rojects, etc.)? 

costs by source: 
CEP 

Personnel Services FJ2 '7~ 177~ 
Supplies 

Capital 

Materials 
Other In' O."') f5 'Z'J,, r7 "h. 

I 

Total 

% of Total Budget provided by Sponsor: 5.1- % , 

Breakdown estimated 

~t'SWP 
Other #1 ~Other #2 

lJ / . 

Zl?. 

Is there secure funding for Sponsor's share of the total costs? Does the project 
include funding from other public or private agencies and what are the sources of 

funding? .[ .. / !'= /I S 
_ · Y'rW'U.bPJDri i p . OM.L:S ; t=f.g _ 

7 



PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Provide a brief narrative outlining the major tasks and projected time schedule for 
completing of each task. 

~ majm= ±a.sk. h Jn pVtividi CL &:i.fe. 
f_.>t.t.pgrvl~-ec£. , and ;HJn_ pLac.Q :Par 
0U.C ~ in CNY\2 ~±n -fur: pa.ct ofl 

'tlu i c '.?ri HY\fil.9.r \Tea t .. Tur ~~ of::: 01LC. 

m1 m mes '±hL R LQ, C.21\Jkr , s \fhJL 

8 



Have you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the past? If 
so, was the project successful? Please describe: _ 

Y-es I tAJt- hove OJvL ~ PYDdecJ 
ht&<!, bun VveJ ;s ucussfo 3 w1% O.OOJf 

tOQ /YLlnAhr> orwl a EJ. ti-tLd fups 
VV/ (Med OU-f- W }'f:b YlAJ.fUhRr f>flf±r"cJpaffr_)Vl . 

·V\J~ bov0, b.elil able. ±o orvvi~otfl 
I 

r Wil±h Tuls d1LrMmv: 

Applications must be submitted by 3:00 pm, May 29, 2019, at Scappoose City 
Hall, 33568 East Columbia Avenue. Please limit question responses to the spaces 
provided. 

Scappoose Motto 
Small Town, Big Community 

9 



ECEIVED 

~·.; i. 2. 3 2019 

BY: ............................. . 
COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICATION 

Sponsor: Sea. Ff"":io MJ?\Le S<:__,hod \ 

Tax ID # C\ 3 - 0 '3 (o \I cg 2 

Contact Person :_Q~l-~~\.f-t--~Kt--=-'-r~l e~c~__,~~----
ctt 

Daytime Phone '5D3 5L{3-J110 5o3 SL13- I l ~ 3 

Address: S 2."2 la 5 $. C,o\_ £.,ver .\±w 'I 

City: 'See- Pf oo5g. State: · 6 L Zip: q-ID5 (,, 

Signature a~~ ki!fill. 
PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Title Amount Funds Requested: Needed by*: 

t±o\\_l~'i ~-t:efuc =6ciz~~r $ 2 5 eJb C£J 5.e,rJ 2Dl'1 
*Availability of funds is contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the'State 

Proposed schedule 

Project Start Date: I '2. -C\ - i 4 Project Completion Date: ~ 2- ~ 13 _. / ~ 

4 



Project Description: 

±h.o 

\\ jf 

+h_-€.\ f- !'c"m ,L1 ttY\tl fu-erJs '1s1 vi =j +he \_f s;;_ eq±~:-er~ +l'-4 ± 

5 



Explain how this project would enhance the Community while achieving one of the 
values described in the Scappoose Vision Statement and/or City Council Goals? 

0. 0 

I I 

C1 5--e- tL s -( .of pr,A-e b '-/ kie-1rl1 B kie 

q Ce,212U- Of ±k£1Y ~ood htJ1P1Ulbf 

Sp&ivu) +h-e t~frcd of ±k--eA.r bonqhons Pb H-e .C-v-i,,g;. of 

±h..e s+,1~\<-n.-k . 

t y\ 

6 



PROJECT BUDGET 
()b 

Total Estimated Costs: S DbO -
How were these costs estimated (quotes, catalog, previous projects, etc.)? 

Breakdown estimated 
costs by source: 

CEP Sponsor Other #1 Other #2 
Personnel Services 

Supplies Db ',9 Cihtl ~ 
Capital 

Materials 

Other Db h.cchort S ~ ~ vJ 56/J lfi,, c }'t 1krv cl. ·~ .i.o •A- > 

Total 

% of Total Budget provided by Sponsor: s5 D % 

Is there secure funding for Sponsor's share of the total costs? Does the project 
include funding from other public or private agencies and what are the sources of 
funding? 

U V\., fc •-h.m_,dlf 

7 



PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Provide a brief narrative outlining the major tasks and projected time schedule for 
completing of each task . 

6 Gyr Y'f\-g ~fl ( .+ei-s IS LS lov~1"'-44 

L>~ t>ka kl>\,jl ri.4 \ -t--e kYt s +h-e 

" 
J,-1 «. "Z?u;c_ ( 

8 



Have you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the past? If 
so, was the project successful? Please describe: 

Applications must be submitted by 3:00 pm, May 29, 2019, at Scappoose City 
Hall, 33568 East Columbia Avenue. Please limit question responses to the spaces 
provided. 

Scappoose Motto 
Small Town, Big Community 

9 



REC .IVED 

r . . Y 1• ~ 2019 
COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICATION 

. ··"••'············ ············ 
Sponsor: Scappoose Public Library District 

Tax ID# 93-0954162 

Contact Person: Jeff Weiss -----------
Daytime Phone 503-543-7123 

Address: 54269 SE Second St 

City: Scappoose State:_O_r __ Zip: 97056 

J ff V W 
• Digltal1y slonedbyJelfreyVWeiss 

ON: c:n:Jelfrey VWeiss, o=Scappoose. Publ ic Library, OU"' Scappoose • e rey e1ss _Pubfle LibraryDlslrict,11mait=Jw11iss@scappooselibrary.org,c:US 

Signature: , "''"20"-"'2"''"'"-0''°' , 

~ 
PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Title Amount Funds Requested: Needed by*: 

Movies and Concerts in Heritage Park $ 2000 
-----

7-1-19 
*Availability of funds is contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the State 

Proposed schedule 

Project Start Date: 6-15-19 Project Completion Date: 9-2-19 

4 



Project Description: 

Th is project is a series of 5 free concerts ( 1 Classical, 1 

jazz, 1 soul, 1 children's, and 1 folk) and 5 summer 

movies to be held in Veteran's Park. It is an expansion 

of our successful Movies in the Park program from 

2018. All programs are family friendly and free and open 

to the public. The schedule is as follows: 

Concerts: 

June 15: Red Yarn (children's concert) 

June 29: Brown Calculus (R&B) 

July 13: Trio Subtonic (Jazz trio) 

July 27: Madero Winds (classical wind sextet) 

Sept 2: Adam Miller presents Songs of the Labor Movement (Labor Day Picnic) 

Movies 

August 2: Back to the Future 

August 9: Bumblebee 

August 16: Dirty Dancing 

August 23: Pee Wee's Big Adventure 

August 30: Wizard of Oz 

Performer fees for concerts: $2375 

Movie Rental Fees to studios: $1915 

5 



Explain how this project would enhance the Community while achieving one of the 
values described in the Scappoose Vision Statement and/or City Council Goals? 

This project would help the city fulfill two items in the Scappoose 

Vision Statement, helping to build a Caring Community and Local Pride. 

The community has few free local events for citizens. We have 

no events like 13 Nights on the River or Halloweentown. What the library 

is doing and has done in the past year is provide successful free activities 

and programs to the community as a whole in public spaces for small money. 

These events benefit the low income, youth, and senior population in the community by providing 

free weekend activities during the summer. We have to supplement our budget with grants 

and donations to continue to do this. As a point of reference, the Scappoose Library 

budget is half of the St Helens Library budget and 15% of the Astoria Library budget. 

All three libraries serve similar sized populations. That's why we are asking 

for support from city council. For any event, we have to pay performers and 

have other costs related to the event. We have to pay movie studios to show 

films in the park. We have to promote events and purchase advertising to make the 

event successful. If these events are important to the council, we need your financial support. 

6 



PROJECT BUDGET 

Total Estimated Costs: 6900 
How were these costs estimated (quotes, catalog, previous projects, etc.)? 

performer contracts (personnel services), movie rental fees, promotional materials, equipment rental 

Breakdown estimated 
costs by source: 

CEP Sponsor Other#1 Other#2 
Personnel Services 900 
Supplies 1000 
Capital 

Materials 800 
Other 2000 1100 1200 

Total 2000 2000 1200 1700 

% of Total Budget provided by Sponsor: 29 % 

Is there secure funding for Sponsor's share of the total costs? Does the project 
include funding from other public or private agencies and what are the sources of 
funding? 

Funding from sponsor is secure. Other sources include a grant from the Columbia County 

Cultural Coalition for $1,200 and a private donation of $1000. The Community Club 

and the Watts House have committed to participating in the events. We are also 

working with JJ Duehren to find other local sponsors and free publicity like we 

did last year. We have an advertising insert commitment from the Spotlight 

for the events. All CEP money will go towards performer fees and film rental costs. 

We have funding commitments for the June activities. In the budget, the "other" category is all hard 

costs (performer contracts and film rental costs).The "supplies" is for equipment we will need to 

rent or purchase for the events. The "materials" is the budget for advertising and signs. 

7 



PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Provide a brief narrative outlining the major tasks and projected time schedule for 
completing of each task. 

Reserve park for events, schedule events (done). 

Book talent (done). Book films (done) 
Connect with previous event partners (Watts House & Community Club) (done). 

Create promotion for event (ongoing). 

Plan pre-event activities (ongoing). 

Get vendor and community booths (ongoing) 

Find other event sponsors (ongoing) 

All ongoing activities to be completed by June 15 

except sponsors and booths for August films. 

Events start mid-June, but we would use the CEP funding for events 

that occur after July 1. All events to be completed by September 5. 

8 



Have you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the past? If 
so, was the project successful? Please describe: 

We received a $1000 CEP grant last year for showing 5 

movies and purchasing equipment for the showings 

(projector, screen, small PA). This year, we are expanding 

to 10 events. At last year's events, we had between 100 and 

200 people of all ages attending each event. We will 

be using the same partners as last year (Watts House, 

Community Club, City of Scappoose, South County Spotlight, 

JJ Duehren) to ensure continued success. We are also adding the 

South County Chamber as a new partner. At this point, most of the major activities 

relating to planning and talent booking are complete. The library has a track record 

of successful ow cost events. Last year's events were paid for by the library, 

I $2150 from corporate and local sponsors, $1000 from the city, and $750 from the Columbia 

County Cultural Coalition. We are planning the events listed in this grant in addition to 

the dozens of events we have each summer for children during Summer Break. 

Applications must be submitted by 3:00 pm, May 29, 2019, at Scappoose City 
Hall, 33568 East Columbia Avenue. Please limit question responses to the spaces 
provided. 

Scappoose Motto 
Small Town, Big Community 

9 



·1 

RECEIVED 
r.-., 2 ; 2011 

COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICATI Y: ................ ............. . 

Sponsor: ~1rfy ol {'{ tit IA. (-('0'1 { J~ efA I >I tJJe«c~s~rl Sco/f!X'Sl 

Tax ID# crs-t}t/S/h2'S 

Contact Person: a~ & acf fev 
I 

Daytime Phone ?tJ5 ~¥7 'Tr 2 I 
Address: 515S5"' St-J OcLJ /?oA::.TCArv/J ~A 

city: SC'4f'~vo >c State: Ote Zip: o/70.r'b -------''---'---'=-=--=---

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Title A ~ . /) / mount Funds Requested: Needed by•: 

P ft:"~ /5t froo/ /c,c/:ftc}: $ ~OQQ~ 
Ava1lab1hty off6nds 1s contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the State 

Proposed schedule /lie /;(Jc/~(" 15"C<. 'fr:'c:<F a .. .1-~oµprrl o ;:::'<"P'(;.(ftoPI 
. Thr' d&<cL f/e<c, flre/1ra.~ o/erc(ff"r °(?/l(CJ~}clur1,.r7 xkal"yt't:fr 

ProJect Start Date: Project Completion Date: -----

/hre 5<<A (J (!oO>t kdd t4_"'-k"I /£ &,/)&t /kJA /ayJ r:1 T~/j~cp 
{rvyi... /-'5/)f1/1 7tJ ~crvc. frof'k ff,<_ l-h-11. >t"t;;<ff/Oox {lc;ml'U~H~'f 

n~ ~""cl lbcL pro7rC</H cl~ /rveyf 0- vve.ei~cf ~o::I b~ r 
fo f /r_,.. > c ?roo/.s 7""' f-~ X<.<./' /bO >R 5' c. koo I ()id, f d -(!,; > 4. J,,.,,,lf 

r,,,u/t._oN[ ACA- e;t:. bt:~vr tc:kP'fc {,,_..cf a.s /Jr::-J.nr ~cd i'11 J<(l<rC; Tie ~'jJ 
ave cle- kv er- r-cf -fe1 rf-he .s;d1u_,/s -(;' cir s {d l:M. f /(Jl-1 t'J 1<. (', 1 c'.y f 
t§2~c_t._ (.;A-)e<e-K d~r/rt7 ~ .f"c.hool yr'ar 

4 



Project Description: 

\~~ 5vo «' ~, ~ s~ \} 1\A~-e--\ cl~ ~tA ( s54 · tJJ~ces~ . ~cc-p,oc<>}.<._, 

CoV\.le.v t:A... \.-- 1.J-0"'~ ~ 5LA.~~~.\ :\-hox \IA ~j 't~ ~ 

Scc:;.... ~Ooo~Co~~l lq l.-\. 3 ~~l tJi ~cf, 

t o~.,J, i °"" o·! C<... '-fL"-' v" C<-YOut"' J £,j ~"'Cy Cd c._ 

ft, f-u -o A u v { J-k {),-~ o~ £. J v<.t 01 ak A ~ ~ fh 
,,./ f~ 

~ pkL-<iq I c;. u(?e,~ 2 d~¥1 $r ~,,/'_l ;/l(lvrclcy e1rhu1-r/~ 
hvAA 1--l; wr, !l /)a~ b is oj&~ ~ ? ~~o~ w/c.,~ tufC< fi&r 

!JvKj 0 Ai~ f'c7Ju/1l 'Jh~ ~;ct i.,..;. ffeUrc~f /tJ/7-1% /0 >7 
" -£.'1r h<$ [p~rc j?rcv;cf.c-cf b / r/-£,t rf-k_ fo v/.., tJge,p_/toPf, 

:2. 5 1' ~/er c.e i, ; drv1 r/c. ~ ~ ; ./!;. C-5~ it« ( /~I 

{t<c..ft 4 5 fA/,/,'~ !/&
1 
~ / d(ck1,1 £r e'S~</;c._( t~u-( ~d 

Pe1s~1-1c.:f; ~r ~cit a> c!flltt'(A.r d~l/k/r~ 7acis 

5, J,,., t7ookfa·lrt-vt u¥tt 1k J;t:1/?/afe >:~ool 4-r4lcl ,J>oq'/~ 
-£'d fvr f1 ye t?11 w~r/cn ci fo >fuc::kvzfi If,~( a~ l'cf.t-e;r.ft/rd 
t:%t;: /;()J r,,,, kCute_, iJt-lr rut ~ 20rf-!f .>Lko"( 'rr'et:r 1-k. . 
aoftA Pt,£&./:s feJ-<-C/C /Jr1Jt1lkd ~k klfte .b~ z f -4 ?P~6D rkrckecl; 

per Wr"t' f /'h f(tR cfrsfrfc h· f; flkoo 6 r 

5 



Explain how this project would enhance the Community while achieving one of the 
values described in the Scappoose Vision Statement and/or City Council Goals? 

~~£)/!_OP)(' tJc~,tJ~ ~l~t.~ ./-

-rA~ 3 O-rc-ct .\ 6" ~ C?rvic~ tA->e o ll'er /:ocf A.'P!.;;*1 ,1 

t~t:.«_clc.c.f # rr's ~ce , a-"'--c::f Sct_oo/~e-L/ZJ /JPc;1etH-t 
• I • 

£ttf2/or ·I j2e&1/)k wfto fue-k ,J'ctsic µc"ch-~ TU.e ~tu kc~1 
f /ct""; /L e~,ahrr:{; /d~ ct~c~,e£y~/ Ci (}r ScA 6tcf a// .hu~ fr f-

{;n<. I-tu_ f e,l/ ice ~ /)to ,,11Je , 7k 1 u M /'I t2r {)v i le cl :s fvµu.j 
, I I 

·ftes~ jJeopk Tt:a/ c/,;p/e 1-h ClrlfA.u,Jlv.11<-.~J i/,c~:I- r~ir / 

?~ l-t.e1, &~~~J f h4 ( th~ k12eoo ~ {lu-tt~nr' i-, tlMt:> 
~ho"1.t f/t-rerr" 7/,"1. 77h ~d h'<5 fubo, / fM. ;?/uce ~ Ae~ 

I -

w 'r 1-h f /;_'-(',,, ~~5 le et~/;, 

6 



PROJECT BUDGET 

Total Estimated Costs: 3:?, 1¥'/ 
How w7re these costs estimC:ted (quotes, catalog, previous projects, etc.)? 
:::<017115' ./'rsc~r yi'Cf' i-l9'1'¥f~.J 

Breakdown estimated 
costs by source: 

CEP Sponsor Other #1 Other #2 
Personnel Services 

Supplies 

Capital 

Materials 
Other 

Total 

% of Total Budget provided by Sponsor: % 

Is there secure funding for Sponsor's share of the total costs? Does the project 
include funding from other public or private agencies and what are the sources of 
fun~jng? I ~ / 
'1k £ "'cl&.7 ·-k O/k/c:::r_.k_ 1-k ?''V/JP .$ f Wet(Cf'ftk.J l(7Afe~ac_e_ 

t!P~ S ~4/7 /UA.L /t(?k ~C/x ,-cf"' I, t )C_A (\'\.,~(e~ 1 '-". l1 ~ \- b~(~<.AJ 

" ·\--~~VI~~-""~' .-e-o"'IA o~"7S ~ \")C. l \\c./\\ d: k J~ v 1 j .lA a ( C 

·~, ""-~de...\ G 'i l~~ "ilu.-v\. '°v.~\ £A-~~~S .J ~Jc.u~Jl<Ct.(S. ~ d i-lt~ .. 

q (u'-". \.s '2c/lcJ1\. C( s +~l ~I A c;l(.;) (' ~ (\;,-{ o~ \::::>rov .\ c-C-e~ ~ 

as So((ClvU~, c·l ~ co~ ~Cc.c ~p:1oie ) (),<' ";;P .-.. [kc.._n·-fc .... "2(~'~dco{t 

c,..d I Oc~v. l?Ci........._{~ {;,....i.._-llol'\ tf.-r ... (c ... (Jc (JOO"-dsi £(col {'....., /0/dxr,. 

DX- k. UJe-\ · · /1. ~k{U:if/l · cl'J1_u_-e Jok.JuH._ '<.Ac£..frx Sec..... oose__ 

--+2,\ \= ~'"f l , dx,.uLt t M1 l' 14> f (<i {Ool\ l:bNA~J ..C'"' ('(loo"' f3,J OU «e 

k~ ~fri o~ {-to,,1J. (~~) Ue~ l{L,, S1Y\ck\ 0(1:-~~ro ~/ St.cyl/Pox ~kI/op 

7 



PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Provide a brief narrative outlining the major tasks and projected time schedule for 
completing of each task. 

\f&e 5\Jt>f? ~.etCr-J£t.JJ {';;0rj2/wX a~;~CC.. 6/)rfc1.f~f 

'4rfA" C<rooNtd w 1 l"" ~ 55rc.u p oi- ~Jtcc...{e>j () u{u_""-{~r_S 
()I.A.'/ f'<']f1.---e"Si '\~ ---1~ s~V\£vCA ( )'u.,ppur -( o""-. ~~ ,kvLJ1Ce.S 

\l.....">C ~ (oJ ' d~ le~ (PLA1~1A;"t.t a....~ 

y{G-> 1 cec:__ \: , 

8 



Have you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the past? If 
so, was the project successful? Please describe: 

.s-v~P ~W~c.r-J/c-ts. S:cc. p/oJJR C ""k?t:Acc k 1 ree.JveJ 
{- /u_ (lo /tl1 f4;f <.-< M f f f:? c--.,,,_ kcuu~ U;c.u { j ?- fH~"' f OU f l(LCcr .f 

the ~c.e( p { o I fht<,,. c;r~ { Ctn~hr~da.¥1/4;( c;r/ 1-w o/kr 

?o,~1ce} a;/' f'u1-1clrnc, (A.1 -f' r~c~rv--e a./hµ_; UJ fu ~Jv~ 1-k 

C'oWf-#tutt f '71. ]... f x 4 ( 2017-/3 Ux; So-vcc! ~/}/)rt:P/cMo...fe6, 
5'&:01!'"' /hf "' v;,cf ·-£ /O{') -(;_/M;/;e I , /Jrov;ki/ /;''r1CUL/~ ( 

T > 

~ >> 1> Yet>( f»tq_? 53 " r't'icf' or f Pc cit/';44 
r;u ~ +~ f&._ fl-~e-d' ~d f~cd wc-e ~c-1' {"cl -tr ~ -60 

5fvt~~_, -fs 1'iv I& I't4uo{)x Stal;/,!?({ I e?<cku;~t"f-, 

f~ (~/~~r, 

Applications must be submitted by 3:00 pm, May 29, 2019, at Scappoose City 
Hall, 33568 East Columbia Avenue. Please limit question responses to the spaces 
provided. 

Scappoose Motto 
Small Town, Big Community 

9 



COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT APPLICATI 

Sponsor: Tu mblwheel Studios 

Tax ID# 83-3052325 

Contact Person: Jenna Reineking 

Daytime Phone 406-855-2773 

Address:52330 SW 4th St. 

City: Scappoose state: OR Zip:97056 

Signature: 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Title Amount Funds Requested: Needed by*: 

Tumblewheel Studios Community Workshops $3925 7/1 /2019 

*Availability of funds is contingent on City's receipt of disbursements from the State 

Proposed schedule 

Project Start Date: 7 /1 /201 9 Project Completion Date: 12/31/2019 

4 



Project Description: 

The Community Enhancement Program funds will be used to offer a series of three to four free 

public art workshops between August, 2019 and December, 2019. The focus of this project, is 

to bring arts education to the youngest, oldest, and most underserved members of our 

community, who may not have access to these types of activities or materials. These eight hour, 

rolling admission events, will take place throughout the Scappoose community. Potential 

venues include Veterans Park, Scappoose Middle School, the Senior Center, and potentially the 

Library. Our workshops will offer attendees the opportunity to learn by doing. Participants 

will be emboldened to develop an exploratory process, in a nurturing environment. 

Students will be exposed to a wide variety of art making techniques, such as printmaking, 

ceramics, sculpture, drawing, and painting. 

Funds will be used to purchase supplies, provide stipends for volunteers, guest artists, 

vendors, and other partners. As well as offset additional costs associated with event production. 

By collaborating with other artists and interpreters, each workshop will be committed to inclusivity, 

and the ability to accommodate a diverse population. 

Tumblewheel Studios is dedicated to strengthening local community by offering children, families, 

and individuals, access to a creative environment where they can develop new skills, exhibit their 

talents, and learn how to express themselves through art. 

5 



Explain how this project would enhance the Community while achieving one of the 
values described in the Scappoose Vision Statement and/or City Council Goals? 

Tumblewheel Studios art education workshops are focused on bringing educational opportunities to 

all ages and ability levels, regardless of race, color, creed, or income status. Creative problem solving 

is at the heart of all artistic practice. It is through the cultivation of this skill that our communities 

youth can more fully develop their criticality and ability think outside the box. 

Money is stretched thin throughout our nation and often art is seen as a dispensable form 

of education. That is why Tumblewheel Studios provides free art education workshops - to 

give our community back opportunities that should be available to all. We provide the tools, 

materials, and knowledge for creative growth. As we age, it becomes harder and harder to 

maintain our creative flair. Our art education workshops nudge people back into activities that 

are mentally stimulating, uniquely rewarding, and promote a lifetime of learning. 

These events will offer community members the opportunity to learn and create together. We 

believe that art has the ability to transcend boundaries and bridge gaps, be they social, economic, 

etcetera. Art is a common thread overcoming all barriers, providing an outlet for human emotion 

and growth. Art is a way to question, reason, and explain when others ways are inadequate, blocked 

or lacking. 

6 



PROJECT BUDGET 

Total Estimated Costs: 5415 
How were these costs estimated (quotes, catalog, previous projects, etc.)? 

Quotes, Previous Projects, Researched Costs 
Breakdown estimated 

costs by source: 
CEP Sponsor Other#1 Other#2 

Personnel Services 2400 700 

Supplies 700 170 160 

Capital 

Materials 
Other 825 360 100 

Total 3925 1230 

% of Total Budget provided by Sponsor: 23 % 

Is there secure funding for Sponsor's share of the total costs? Does the project 
include funding from other public or private agencies and what are the sources of 
funding? 

The funding provided by the Sponsor is secure and in the form of donated Volunteer hours, as 

well as a percentage of revenue generated by youth summer camp programming at Touchstone 

Preschool. These funds will be used towards event liability insurance, gas, and event promotion. 

Additional funds have been secured via donations from local community partners, such as 

lnRoads Credit Union, which will be used to reserve event sites. A portion of art materials and 

supplies have been generously donated by Blick Art Materials, Artist & Craftsman Supply, and 

participating local artists. 



PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Provide a brief narrative outlining the major tasks and projected time schedule for 
completing of each task. 

We are currently in the process of reaching out to community organizations to plan dates for our 

proposed events. Tumblewheel Studios is hoping to collaborate with the Scappoose Middle 

School, Police Department, and the Senior Center. However, we are also interested in involving 

other local organizations in the form of catering, music, and other local talent. We will have 

dates, locations, and partners confirmed no later than July 31st. During the month of July, we 

will flesh out workshop activities, and begin workshop promotions via social media, community 

boards, and flyers. Our tentative date for the initial class is August 17th - subsequent class 

dates are roughly October 19th and December 14th, with the potential for a fourth workshop 

sometime in September or November. The first week of each month will be used to purchase 

additional supplies needed for the workshop, as well as to create informational handouts for attendees. 

Tumblewheel Studios currently offers free public workshops, as well as after-school 

programming, and supports local curriculums by supplying innovative approaches to learning. 

We have partnered with the Lake Oswego Festival of the Arts, and Art in the Pearl, to provide arts 

education and hands on art making opportunities to communities in Northwest, Oregon. 

8 



Have you received a Community Enhancement grant for this project in the past? If 
so, was the project successful? Please describe: 

This is our first time applying for a Community Enhancement grant. 

Applications must be submitted by 3:00 pm, May 29, 2019, at Scappoose City 
Hall, 33568 East Columbia Avenue. Please limit question responses to the spaces 
provided. 

Scappoose Motto 
Small Town, Big Community 

9 



CITY OF SCAPPOOSE 

Council Action & Status Report 

Date Submitted: 

Agenda Date Requested: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

[ ] Resolution 

[ ] Formal Action 

May 29, 2019 

June 3, 2019 

Scappoose City Council 

Alexandra Rains, Assistant to City 
Manager 

Amendment to Economic 
Development Committee Bylaws 

[ ] Ordinance 

[ X ] Report Only 

ANALYSIS: At their May 15th meeting, the Economic Development Committee 
recommended City Council consider revising the Committee's bylaws to allow additional 
consecutive terms to be served by its members. Currently, the bylaws only allow two 
consecutive terms, and four consecutive terms is being proposed. The Committee felt 
this was important for two primary reasons, 1) its often difficult to find volunteers to 
serve on the Committee, particularly in a town with such a high percentage of citizens 
who commute for employment, and 2) the three existing members who's terms are 
expiring in August, were only given a one-year long second term, in order to establish 
the staggered terms required by the bylaws. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council approve Resolution No. 19-05, 
thereby approving the updated language to the Economic Development Committee's 
Bylaws. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move Council approve Resolution No. 19-05, thereby 
approving updated language to the Economic Development Committee's Bylaws. 

Request for Council Action 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-05 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 18-22, CITY OF SCAPPOOSE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE BYLAWS, ARTICLE V, SECTION 1E, MEMBERSHIP. 

WHEREAS, the Scappoose City Council created an Economic Development Committee to promote the 
creation and retention oflocal jobs that will help build a stronger community, and to advise and make 
recommendations to City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the members of the Committee volunteer their time to meet once per month for a lunch 
meeting and occasionally for additional meetings on an as needed basis; and 

WHEREAS, its difficult to find volunteers who have the time necessary to serve on the City's Economic 
Development Committee, particularly since more than 70 percent of the Scappoose citizens commute for 
employment; and 

WHEREAS, in order to ensure a full membership, the Committee requested Council extend the number 
of full subsequent terms a member may serve from two to four terms; and 

WHEREAS, three of the City's existing members only served a one-year long, second term in order to 
establish the staggered terms required in the bylaws. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SCAPPOOSE ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Article V, Section 1E. E. Members of the SEDC will be appointed by the Scappoose City 
Council for terms up to three years, or a portion of three years if appointed to fill an unexpired 
term. Expiration dates for terms shall be staggered so that no more than one-third or up to three 
of the members' terms will expire in any year. It is recommended that members who have 
filled an unexpired term may serve for four full subsequent terms; however, no more than four 
consecutive full terms may be served by any member. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Scappoose City Council on this __ day of June, 2019, and signed 
by me and the City Recorder, in authentication of its passage. 

Attest: _____________ _ 
Susan M. Reeves, MMC, City Recorder 

CITY OF SCAPPOOSE, OREGON 

Scott Burge, Mayor 



Attachment A 

City of Scappoose Economic Development Committee 

BYLAWS 

ARTICLE I - NAME 

Scappoose Economic Development Committee 

ARTICLE II-AUTHORIZATION 

Established by resolution by the Scappoose City Council, Resolution No. 15-14, passed July 20, 2015 and 
then by Resolution 18-22, passed October 1 si, 2018 which rescinded Resolution No. 15-14. 

ARTICLE III - PURPOSE 

A. Advise and make recommendations to City Council on economic development policy and 
issues to support advancing the economy and prosperity. 

B. Work to create and promote the Scappoose Economic Development Strategic Plan. 

ARTICLE IV - RESPONSIBILITIES/OBJECTIVES 

A. To design, develop and promote an economic development strategic plan. 

B. To provide oversight and review of economic development marketing strategies and 
products. 

C. To enhance communication and understanding of economic development strategies, and build 
relationships between the Scappoose public sector, community, and business community. 

D. To act as a forum for sharing information on best economic development practices, 
current issues and resources available for communities and businesses. 

E. To encourage connections and coordination with other regional, state and national 
organizations working for the benefit of economic growth and enhancement of the 
Scappoose area economy. 

F. To respond to additional matters relating to economic development as requested by 
the City Council 

ARTICLE V - ORGANIZATION AND STRUCTURE 

Section 1 Membership 

A. Membership of the Scappoose EDC shall consist of a maximum of nine (9) voting 
members appointed by the Mayor with the consent of the City Council in accordance with 
Scappoose Municipal Code 2.040.080. A majority of SEDC members shall be from the private 
sector. 

B. Members shall live or work or have significant interest in economic development in the City of 
Scappoose. 



C. Membership shall represent the private-for-profit, not-for profit and public sectors. The SEDC 
should include: 

(1) members with backgrounds in economics and business, 

(2) members who are geographically distributed throughout the industrial and 
commercial zones of the City, 

(3) members who represent a wide range of business sectors and types in Scappoose, 

(4) members with demonstrated leadership, commitment and expertise. 

D. Ex-officio representatives ofrelated organizations and the business community may 
also be invited to participate in SEDC meetings and work sessions as determined by the voting 
members. 

E. Members of the SEDC will be appointed by the Scappoose City Council for terms up to three 
years, or a portion of three years if appointed to fill an unexpired term. Expiration dates for terms 
shall be staggered so that no more than one-third or up to three of the members' terms will expire 
in any year. It is recommended that members who have filled an unexpired term may serve for 
four full subsequent terms; however, no more than four consecutive full terms may be served by 
any member. 

F. An alternate to each member may be selected. The alternate member may participate in 
discussions, but shall have no vote, unless a regular member of the Commission is absent or not 
participating due to a conflict of interest; in such case the alternate shall be called upon to vote. In 
no case shall both the member and alternate both have a vote on the same motion. 

G. Members, or their alternates, missing three (3) consecutive meetings will be considered for 
removal. The commission will present a written recommendation to Council for their action. 

Section 2. Officers 

A. The SEDC shall elect a Chair and Vice Chair every twelve (12) months. The City Economic 
Development Coordinator or designee shall serve as Recording Secretary. 

B. The duties and powers of the officers of the Scappoose Economic Development Commission, who 
shall be elected annually in July, shall be as follows: 

(1) Chair 

• Preside at all meetings of the Commission 
Development of a written agenda in sufficient time to allow for 
distribution to Commission prior to any regular meeting. 

• Call special meetings of the Commission in accordance with the By-laws; 
• See that all actions of the Commission are properly taken; 
• Presents the Commissions views, recommendations or actions to 

the City Council and any other appropriate body as designated by 
the Mayor, Council or Council's liaison to the commission. 
Co-Sign official documents of the SEDC, with Recording 
Secretary. 

(2) Vice Chair 



During absence, disability, or disqualification of the Chair, the 
Vice Chair shall exercise or perform the duties and be subject to all 
of the duties of the Chair. 

C. The following position is filled by City of Scappoose staff assigned to the SEDC and is not a member 
of the Board. 

Recording Secretary 

Keep summary minutes of all meeting of the SEDC; 
Give or serve all notices required by law or required in the SEDC 
By-laws; 
Prepare the agenda of all meetings of the SEDC; 
Be custodian of SEDC records; 
Inform the SEDC of correspondence relating to business of the 
SEDC and attend to such correspondence; 
Co-Sign official documents of the SEDC, with Chair. 

ARTICLE VI - MEETING PROCEDURES AND QUORUM 

A. The SEDC shall hold regularly scheduled meetings. Members will be reminded by written 
notice, including electronic means such as email, at least five ( 5) days prior to the scheduled 
meetings. The notice will include the date, time, location and agenda for the meeting. The SEDC 
shall schedule and publish regular meeting dates on a quarterly basis. Summary minutes shall be 
taken for all meetings and shall be available for viewing by anyone, on request. Minutes are to be 
distributed to all members and others expressing an interest in receiving them. 

B. Special meetings may be called at any time by the Chair or by a petition signed by not less 
than three of the SEDC membership, setting forth and the reason for calling such a meeting. 

C. SEDC Meetings shall be publicized in accordance with the Oregon public meetings law. 

D. A majority of current membership entitled to vote shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 
of business. 

E. Robert's Rules of Order shall guide the SEDC in all cases not otherwise provided for in these 
rules. All final determination of procedure shall be the responsibility of the Chair. 

F. Matters referred to the SEDC by City Council shall be placed on the calendar for consideration 
and action at the first regular meeting of the SEDC after such reference, providing that an 
appropriate amount of time is allowed for public notice if required by law. 

G. Committees and subcommittees shall meet at the call of the SEDC Chair and the respective 
committee or subcommittee. 

H. The Chair has the right to vote whenever a vote is cast. In the case of a tie vote with the Chair 
voting, the motion fails. 

I. A report of the SEDC activities shall be made to City Council annually. 

ARTICLE VII- AMENDING BY-LAWS 



Amendments to these bylaws may be made by the City Council or may be proposed by the 
Economic Development Committee to the City Council. City Council will consider all amendments 
proposed by a majority of the Economic Development Committee. 

ARTICLE VIII - APPROVALS 
The above bylaws for the Scappoose Economic Development Commission have been duly considered and 
reviewed, and are hereby recommended for adoption by the Scappoose City Council this 1st day of 
October, 2018. 



CITY OF SCAPPOOSE 
- -- ----------·-·-- -··-·· ·-·-----.----~-----·--- ... _____ ---------. ----

June 2019 

Monday 

3 5 6 

City Council 7pm 

19 10 11 12 13 
Planning 
Commission 7pm 

16 17 20 EDC - noon 
City Council 
6pm (starts Park & Rec Comm. 

earlier) & Friends of Park 
: meeting - 6pm 

26 27 Planning 
Commission 7pm 
Heritage Park -
Concerts in the Park: 

i Brown Calculus Jazz 
/soul duo 3:00pm to 
5:30pm 

·------------·--·-·--·-"'--·---·-------

7 

21 

28 

1 
Scappoose 
Farmers Market 
9 am -2pm 

8 
Scappoose 
Farmers Market 
9 am -2pm 

15 Farmers Market 
9am-2pm & Heritage 
Park - Library presents 
Red Yarn children's 
concert Summer 
Reading Kickoff 
1-2:30pm 

22 
Scappoose 
Farmers Market 
9 am -2pm 

29 
Scappoose 

: Farmers Market 


	June 3, 2019
	2.
	3.
	AMANI CENTER
	CASA for Children, Inc
	Chamber of Commerce
	Columbia Humane Society
	Scappoose Community Club
	Historical
	Scappoose Kiwanis
	SMS
	Scappoose Public Library District
	St. Vicent de Paul
	Tumblwheel Studios
	5.
	calendar

